
Please ask for Christine Morgan: Telephone 01775 764454 
e-mail: cmorgan@sholland.gov.uk

AGENDA

Committee - PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL

Date & Time - Wednesday, 30 January 2019 at 6.30 pm

Venue - Meeting Room 1, Council Offices, Priory Road, 
Spalding

Membership of the Performance Monitoring Panel:

Councillors: B Alcock (Chairman), G R Aley, J R Astill, M D Booth (Vice-Chairman), 
C J T H Brewis, G K Dark, P C Foyster, R Grocock, J L King, J D McLean, A M Newton, 
M D Seymour, A C Tennant, J Whitbourn and S Wray

Substitute members on the Performance Monitoring Panel may be appointed only 
from members who are not on the Cabinet.  Substitutions apply for individual 
meetings only. 

Quorum: 5

Persons attending the meeting are 
requested to turn their mobile telephones to 

silent mode

Democratic Services
Council Offices, Priory Road
Spalding, Lincs PE11 2XE

Date:   22 January 2019

Public Document Pack

Page 1



A G E N D A

1 Apologies for absence. 

2 Declaration of Interests. - Where a Councillor has a Disclosable 
Pecuniary Interest the Councillor must declare the interest to the 
meeting and leave the room without participating in any discussion or 
making a statement on the item, except where a councillor is permitted 
to remain as a result of a grant of dispensation.

3 Health Inequality and Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy - Members 
will receive a presentation from the Director of Public Health, Derek 
Ward, and Lincolnshire County Councillor Susan Woolley (Chairman of 
the Lincolnshire Health and Wellbeing Board).

4 Minutes – To sign as a correct record the minutes of the following 
meetings:

a)  Performance Monitoring Panel - 13 November 2018 (copy 
enclosed).

(Pages 
5 - 14)

b)  Joint meeting of the Performance Monitoring Panel and Policy 
Development Panel - 1 November 2018 (copy enclosed).

(Pages 
15 - 20)

5 Questions asked under Standing Order 6 

6 Tracking of Recommendations - To consider responses of the Cabinet 
to reports of the Panel.

7 Items referred from the Policy Development Panel. 

8 Key Decision Plan - To note the current Key Decision Plan (Pages 
21 - 26)

9 Quarter 3 2018-19 Performance Overview Report - To provide an 
update on how the Council is performing for the period 1 October 2018 
to 31 December 2018 (report of the Portfolio Holder Strategy, 
Governance and Transformation, the Portfolio Holder Governance and 
Customer and the Executive Manager People and Public Protection 
enclosed).

(Pages 
27 - 58)

10 Enforcement Update - To provide members with an update on 
enforcement activity (report of the Executive Director Place enclosed).

(Pages 
59 - 66)

11 Emergency Planning - To provide an update to the Panel on the terms 
of Reference with the Lincolnshire Resilience Forum (report of the 
Portfolio Holder Place and the Executive Director Place).

(To 
Follow)

12 Economic Development - To provide an update on how economic 
development is undertaken and promoted in South Holland (report of the 
Portfolio Holder Growth and Commercialisation and the Executive 
Director Commercialisation).

(To 
Follow)

Page 2



13 Constitution - To consider variations to the Constitution (report of the 
Monitoring Officer enclosed).

(Pages 
67 - 76)

14 Final Report of the Public Toilets Task Group - To present the Task 
Group’s Final Report to the Panel for consideration (report of the Task 
Group Chairman, Councillor G K Dark). 

(To 
Follow)

15 Performance Monitoring Panel Work Programme - To set out the Work 
Programme of the Performance Monitoring Panel (report of the 
Executive Manager – Governance enclosed).

(Pages 
77 - 84)

16 Any other items which the Chairman decides are urgent - 

NOTE: No other business is permitted unless by reason of special 
circumstances, which shall be specified in the minutes, the 
Chairman is of the opinion that the item(s) should be 
considered as a matter of urgency.

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank



- 13 -

Minutes of a meeting of the PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL held in the 
Meeting Room 1, Council Offices, Priory Road, Spalding, on Tuesday, 13 November 
2018 at 6.30 pm.

PRESENT

B Alcock (Chairman)
M D Booth (Vice-Chairman)

G R Aley
P C Foyster

J D McLean
A M Newton

M D Seymour
S Wray

 

In Attendance:  The Executive Director Commercialisation (S151), the Executive 
Manager Growth, the Place Manager, the Communities Manager, the Corporate 
Improvement and Performance Manager, the Inward Investment Manager, the 
Democratic Services Officer and the Portfolio Holder Communities and Facilities.

Apologies for absence were received from or on behalf of Councillors J R Astill, 
C J T H Brewis, G K Dark, J L King, A C Tennant and J Whitbourn. 

Action By
23 MINUTES 

AGREED:

a) That the minutes of the meeting of the Performance 
Monitoring Panel held on 26 September 2018 were signed by 
the Chairman as a correct record;

b) That the minutes of the meeting of the Joint Performance 
Monitoring Panel and Policy Development Panel held on 4 
October 2018 were signed by the Chairman as a correct 
record. 

24 DECLARATION OF INTERESTS. 

There were no declarations of interest. 

25 QUESTIONS ASKED UNDER STANDING ORDER 6 

There were no questions asked under Standing Order 6. 

26 TRACKING OF RECOMMENDATIONS 

There were no responses of the Cabinet to consider. 

Page 5

Agenda Item 4a)



- 14 -

PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 
13 November 2018

27 ITEMS REFERRED FROM THE POLICY DEVELOPMENT 
PANEL. 

There were no items referred from the Policy Development Panel. 

28 KEY DECISION PLAN 

Consideration was given to the Key Decision Plan issued on 5 
November 2018.

AGREED:

That the Key Decision Plan issued on 5 November 2018 be 
noted. 

29 PERFORMANCE OVERVIEW REPORT - QUARTER 2 2018/19 

Consideration was given to the report of the Executive Director, 
Strategy and Governance, which provided an update on Council 
performance for the period 1 July 2018 to 30 September 2018.

Quarter 2 saw performance drop slightly in comparison to quarter 
3.  Performance was rated as ‘moderate’ with 12 indicators being 
green (63%) which indicates good performance.  There were 3 
(15%0 amber indicators and 4 red indicators (21%), highlighting 
lower than expected performance.  There were 7 indicators which 
were classified as data only – this meant that they were monitored 
without requiring a target.

The Corporate Improvement and Performance Manager 
highlighted the following:

 There had been a significant increase in complaints received – 
trend analysis was being undertaken to try and identify why.

 Staff turnover – a comparison of the Authority’s staff turnover 
against the national average was currently being undertaken.  

 One of the recommendations within the report was that the 
current target score for staff turnover was amended to reflect 
modern turnover rates for local authorities.  The proposal was 
that the maximum threshold for staff turnover was amended 
from 10% to 17.5% for 2018/19.

In discussing the report, the following key points emerged:

 Members asked if there was a trend in the increase in 
complaints?  Officers responded that this formed part of the 
trend analysis work currently being undertaken.  The results of 
this would be brought back to a future meeting.

Page 6



- 15 -

PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 
13 November 2018

 Members asked if staff turnover was higher in certain grades 
of staff than others? Officers responded that high level 
reasons for staff turnover were included within the report, but 
this information had to be interrogated further and the 
information brought back to the Panel.

 Members responded that it would be useful to see the results 
of exit interviews.  Officers advised the individuals could not be 
identified but the information could be summarised.

 Members commented that collection rates, particularly for 
Business Rates, were good, and that staff should be 
congratulated.  It was hoped that this would reduce the 
amount of money the Authority had to write off.  

AGREED:

That the content of the report be noted.

(The Corporate Improvement and Performance Manager left the 
meeting following discussion of this item). 

30 CRIME AND DISORDER PARTNERSHIP UPDATE 

With the agreement of the Chairman, this item was brought 
forward on the agenda.

Consideration was given to the report of the Executive Director 
Place which provided members with an update on community 
safety partnership work at a County and local level.  The Portfolio 
Holder Communities and Facilities and the Communities Manager 
were in attendance to provide further information and answer the 
Panel’s questions.  The following issues were raised:

 Officers confirmed that to date, 33 Fixed Penalty Notices had 
been issued by the wardens and that although the charges 
varied depending on how promptly they were paid, they 
averaged £75.  Members questioned whether this level of 
income was sustainable once the funding for the wardens 
ended.

o Officers commented that alternative models had 
been explored before commencing this project. The 
benefit of the current delivery project was that in 
addition to generating some income and tackling the 
issue, it was also providing an educational role and 
building an evidence base for future business 
models.

 Officers provided some background to members on the Youth 
Restorative Option, referred to within the report.  It was a new 

Page 7



- 16 -

PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 
13 November 2018

initiative which aimed to reduce the levels of anti social 
behaviour.  

o Members commented that they wished to see more 
information on output.  There had been similar 
boards previously which had delivered mixed results 
and more information on this initiative was required, 
advising how the various agencies were working 
together to solve the problem.

 Members asked whether mental health was an issue that was 
being monitored, and whether it was possible to monitor how 
much the issue was a background to crimes that were 
committed.

o Officers responded that the mental health of victims 
and perpetrators was an issue for the ASB Core 
Priority Group.  It was very active, with a county lead 
and more training being provided for front line staff.  
Consideration was being given to how mental health 
nurses and professionals could provide help. Anti 
social behaviour cases could be tracked with 
information going through the PCC and at County 
Council level in respect to mental health and Crisis.  
More information on this would be provided within 
the next report.

AGREED:

a) That the content of the report be noted; and

b) That a further update report be provided to the Panel in six 
months time, to include information on how the Youth 
Restorative Option would be working with various agencies to 
address the issue of antisocial behaviour, and links between 
mental health and crime. 

EH CM 

31 SWIMMING POOL AND LEISURE FACILITIES CONTRACT 
TASK GROUP UPDATE 

With the agreement of the Chairman, this item was brought 
forward on the agenda.

Consideration was given to the report of the Executive Director 
Place which provided members with an update on the 
recommendations of the Swimming Pool and Leisure Facilities 
Contract Task Group.  The Task Group had presented its 
recommendations to Cabinet in November 2016, and the Panel 
had since been provided with three progress updates.

Page 8



- 17 -

PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 
13 November 2018

The Communities Manager provided an update on the Task 
Group’s recommendations.  She also advised that its 
recommendations had been included within the contract and 
service specification for the new leisure contract, which was 
shortly to be awarded.  Better performance and feedback was 
anticipated.

Members considered the information, and the following issues 
were raised:

 Where feedback was received, were these responded to, and 
could it be established if multiple comments were received 
from the same individuals?  

o Officers responded that feedback was provided 
however, these were anonomysed and it was 
therefore not possible to know if the same individual 
provided comments more than once.

 Members stated their dissatisfaction at the closure of facilities 
due to lack of staff.  

o Officers responded that there had been challenges 
in recruiting  lifeguards.  An Improvement Required 
Notice had been issued and followed up, to ensure 
the problem was addressed.

 Members commented that social media and digital marketing 
were important issues – what was the plan going forward if the 
contract provider changed?

o Officers responded that a communications plan was 
an important part of the contracts.  It was likely that 
if the provider changed, there would be some 
teething problems however, it was hoped that any 
changes would be as seamless as possible

 Members commented that generally, the report was good, and 
that issues raised were now being dealt with.

AGREED:

a) That the content of the report be noted; and

b) That a further update report be considered in six months time.

(The Portfolio Holder Communities and Facilities and the 
Communities Manager left the meeting following consideration of 
this item).  

EH CM 

Page 9



- 18 -

PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 
13 November 2018

32 OPPORTUNITY PETERBOROUGH 

Consideration was given to the report of the Executive Director 
Commercialisation, which updated the Panel on activity 
undertaken through the Council’s relationship with Opportunity 
Peterborough to date, and set out the work programme for the 
next six months.

Members considered the report, and the following issues were 
raised:

 Members commented that a good foundation had been 
achieved, but that the next few months would bear out 
whether it had been beneficial.  It was important that the 
marketing and communication document was robust, and that 
South Holland was sold well to the 
Peterborough/Cambridgeshire area. 

 The Panel was concerned that progress would not be known 
for a further six months.  An update was required sooner.  
Members also requested that feedback from Fenland and 
South Kesteven Councils (who had also worked with 
Opportunity Peterborough) be provided.

o Officers responded that feedback from both 
authorities would be sought, and that this and an 
update on progress would be provided to the next 
meeting of the Panel. 

AGREED:

a) That the report be noted; and

b) That an update report, to include feedback from Fenland and 
South Kesteven councils, be presented to the next meeting of 
the Panel. 

NB 

33 ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 

Consideration was given to the report of the Executive Manager 
Growth, which provided an update on how economic development 
was undertaken and promoted in South Holland.  Issues covered 
included Opportunity Peterborough, business engagement, major 
sites and infrastructure, inward investment, skills, Grants4growth 
and other grant funding, and strategic engagement.  

Members commented that it was good to receive such a positive 
report, and that many initiatives now were bearing fruit.  The 
Authority needed to ensure that it was successful in achieving its 

Page 10



- 19 -

PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 
13 November 2018

fair share of funding from the GLLEP and other funding 
organisations, and the Panel needed to be reassured that all 
monies available were being applied for.

AGREED:

a) That the contents of the report be noted; and

b) That a further update be provided to the Panel at its next 
meeting.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                 

NB, MH 

34 INFORMATION ON FUTURE COMMERCIALISATION 
PROJECTS 

Consideration was given to the report of the Executive Director 
Commercialisation, which provided an update on activities and 
progress made on growth and commercialisation properties.  

Details of current projects were detailed within the report.  
Members were advised that resourcing was still the most 
challenging issue however, business was still being done.

Members considered the report, and the following issues were 
raised:

 Members asked whether, now some positions had been filled, 
officers were satisfied that the programme of work could be 
delivered?

o With regard to housing, officers responded that the 
additional resources helped.  Housing delivery, 
resources had been a large issue however, project 
delivery was now being supported.  Interviews 
would shortly be taking place for technical support.

o Officers also stated that there was a need to find 
new projects to replace those that were well 
underway.  Issues such as planning, viability could 
make this difficult however, the situation was moving 
forward, and some helpful work with Homes 
England had been undertaken.  

 Members asked what was happening with South Holland 
Homes.

o Officers stated that there were plans to resurrect the 
company.  It had been established with certain 
Articles, consideration had to be given to the legal 
aspects of changing this however, it would not be 
straightforward.  Consideration should also be given 
to whether it would be easier to make changes to 

Page 11



- 20 -

PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 
13 November 2018

the company in its present position, or to start 
afresh. 

 Members asked, with the house building cap now removed, 
where would resources be found within the building trade.

o Officers agreed that the Authority needed to gear up 
to address this situation, and that it needed to work 
with suppliers, landowners and developers. 

 Members asked what the situation was in relation to the bridge 
that formed part of the Spalding Western Relief Road.  The 
road was a priority for the whole wellbeing of the district, and 
for its economic future.

o Officers responded that this project was the main 
focus for the Executive Programme Manager, and 
that the northern end was now proceeding at a 
greater pace.

 Although commercialisation was now a regular item on the 
Panel’s Work Programme, members requested that sufficient 
time be given for discussion of larger individual issues such as 
Ayscoughfee Hall Museum and the South Holland Centre.  
Members wished to look at individual projects in more depth, 
and not too late in the process. 

o Officers advised that it was likely that informal 
briefing sessions to all members would be 
undertaken at appropriate times.  Some issues be 
undertaken over a period of time.  Formal reports 
would ultimately be presented to Cabinet, with 
overarching reports to the Panel.  Officers would try 
to engage members as much as possible.

AGREED:

That the report be noted. 

35 PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL WORK PROGRAMME 

Consideration was given to the report of the Executive Manager 
Governance, which set out the Work Programme of the 
Performance Monitoring Panel.  The Work Programme consisted 
of two separate sections, the first setting out the dates of the 
future Panel meetings along with proposed items for 
consideration, and the second setting out the Task Groups that 
had been identified by the Panel.

Page 12



- 21 -

PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 
13 November 2018

AGREED:

That the Work Programme provided by the Executive Manager – 
Governance be noted. 

36 ANY OTHER ITEMS WHICH THE CHAIRMAN DECIDES ARE 
URGENT 

There were no urgent items. 

(The meeting ended at 8.35 pm)

(End of minutes)

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



- 1 -

Minutes of a meeting of the JOINT PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL AND 
POLICY DEVELOPMENT PANEL held in the Council Chamber, Council Offices, 
Priory Road, Spalding, on Thursday, 1 November 2018 at 6.30 pm.

PRESENT

A R Woolf 
 

B Alcock
G R Aley
D Ashby
J R Astill
F Biggadike
M D Booth

C J T H Brewis
G K Dark
L J Eldridge
P C Foyster
A Harrison
J L King

A M Newton
J L Reynolds
A C Tennant
J Tyrrell
A R Woolf
S Wray

Apologies for absence were received from or on behalf of Councillors J D McLean, 
E J Sneath and J Whitbourn 

In Attendance:  Portfolio Holder – Finance, Portfolio Holder – Governance and 
Customer, Executive Director Strategy and Governance, Shared Executive Manager 
Information, Corporate Improvement and Performance Manager, Digital and 
Customer Access Manager, Shared ICT Manager and Democratic Services Officer.

Action By
7. ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN 

Councillor A Woolf was elected as Chairman for the duration of 
this meeting. 

8. DECLARATION OF INTERESTS 

There were none. 

9. CUSTOMER ACCESS STRATEGY AND ICT & DIGITAL 
STRATEGY 

It was agreed by the Chairman of the Joint Panel of the 
Performance Monitoring Panel and Policy Development Panel, 
that agenda items 4 and 5 would be discussed together, due to 
the similarities between the reports and their interlinked nature.

Consideration was given to the reports of the Portfolio Holder for 
Governance and Customer and the Executive Director – Strategy 
and Governance which sought to receive the Joint Panel’s 
feedback on two new strategies which aimed to improve 
residents’ experience of contacting South Holland District Council 
while also increasing the efficiency of the overall operating 

Page 15

Agenda Item 4b)



- 2 -

JOINT PERFORMANCE MONITORING 
PANEL AND POLICY DEVELOPMENT 
PANEL - 1 November 2018

arrangements.

Councillor Carter was in attendance as the Portfolio Holder for 
Governance and Customer, and introduced the two reports. It was 
agreed that digital strategies should aim to focus digital resources 
on those who would / were likely to use digital services but that 
non-digital access routes were maintained too for those who 
struggled with digital interaction, with saved resources and time 
dedicated to such customers.

Members asked what input CPBS had, had on the strategies. The 
Executive Manager for information replied that both of the reports 
had been to the Council’s ICT and Customer Governance Board 
for feedback on multiple occasions and that CPBS Managers sat 
on this board.

Members asked why the reports did not include a business case. 
They felt that officers should be mindful to ensure the strategy 
was tailored to South Holland District Council. They also brought 
up the quotes from personas on page 7 of the appendix to the 
Customer Access Strategy. They felt that these quotes seemed 
unnecessary. On that point, the Executive Manager for 
Information stated that the strategy was in fact aimed at reaching 
out to a greater proportion of residents and that it was hoped it 
would allow the Council to be able to fulfil more complex requests, 
which were hard to carry out due to the limitations with the current 
system.

Regarding the business case, The Executive Manager for 
Information stated that the quoted amounts may have seemed to 
be larger than the quotes provided by CPBS to replace the 
Customer Relationship Management system because of the size 
of the regenerative works that the Council wanted to undertake to 
improve its wider business processes. It was stated that when the 
report went to its final decision maker, there would be checks and 
balances put in place to ensure that the Council would not be 
made out of pocket by the changes.

Members also stated that they felt that with the current age 
demographic of the district, the change was premature until there 
was a properly reasoned business case for such a change. They 
felt that the strategy should not yet be adopted.

Members questioned the quotes and personas on page 7 of the 
appendix to the report of the Customer Access Strategy, feeling 
that they were unrealistic. They also wanted to establish where 
the budget for the strategies was coming from. Members felt that 

Page 16



- 3 -

JOINT PERFORMANCE MONITORING 
PANEL AND POLICY DEVELOPMENT 
PANEL - 1 November 2018

the strategy should go to further scrutiny before it went to its final 
decision maker. The Executive Director for Strategy and 
Governance stated that it had not been determined where the 
allocation budget would come from and that work would be done 
to define this over the coming weeks and months.

Councillors mentioned that they had noticed that CPBS were not 
mentioned within the Customer Access Strategy document and 
could not see the reason for not mentioning the Council’s 
Strategic partner in the document. The Executive Director for 
Strategy and Governance answered that this was the case in the 
Customer Access Strategy document, only because it was a 
public facing document, but that CPBS had been involved in the 
creation of the documents.

Members further questioned where the budget was coming from 
for both strategies. The Executive Manager for Information stated 
that work had been done with the Finance Partner to find money 
in the transformation fund but that more work would be done in 
the coming months to locate the additional monies.

Members stated that they were worried that the strategy may not 
be particularly beneficial. The Executive Manager for Information 
stated that the benefit would come from the fact that the public 
interaction services would be streamlined, easier to work with and 
that it would be easier to guarantee that requests were followed 
up on in a more effective and timely fashion. The Digital and 
Customer Services Manager stated that the changes allowed the 
authority to spend more time and resources with people who had 
difficulties engaging digitally.

Members said they would have liked to have seen more 
supporting evidence behind the quotes, figures and information. 
They requested that officers carry out work to generate a risk 
assessment linked to the document in order to plan for any 
outcome. Members mentioned that on Page 11 of the appendix to 
the report of the ICT & Digital Strategy there was inclusion of 
Breckland District Council office locations which they felt 
suggested the report was not tailored specifically to South Holland 
District Council. At that point several members stated that they 
could not vote to approve the report until more had been done to 
generate a risk assessment, business case and costing details. 
The Digital and Customer Services Manager stated that the 
personas featured in the Customer Access Strategy were actually 
based upon real data gathered from the public of South Holland.

The Executive Director for Strategy and Governance stated that it 

Page 17



- 4 -

JOINT PERFORMANCE MONITORING 
PANEL AND POLICY DEVELOPMENT 
PANEL - 1 November 2018

could be possible to go back with the Councillors’ feedback to 
address the issues raised and that the reports be brought back to 
further scrutiny.

Fears were raised that a media and public opinion issue could 
occur upon the implementation of these strategies if it was not 
made perfectly clear that non-digital routes of interaction were not 
being cut. The Portfolio Holder for Governance and Customer 
stated that people would not be ‘forced’ to adopt online-only 
interaction and that the non-digital communication routes would 
always be available. The Executive Manager for Information 
further stated that they did not want to disadvantage anyone and 
reassured members that there was no intention to remove non-
digital interaction under these strategies and the authority would 
support people in using ICT if they wished to learn.

Some members believed that the same increase in customer 
satisfaction could be achieved by improving funding to services 
instead of making the reporting processes better. The Executive 
Manager for Information explained that the intention behind the 
streamlining of these services was to free up resources that could 
be used and reinvested in frontline services.

Councillor Coupland spoke as the Portfolio Holder for Finance, 
saying that he was under the impression that CPBS hadn’t seen 
the two strategies and that he had hoped that CPBS would be let 
into the arrangement. He agreed with the previously expressed 
sentiment that this should be treated as an introductory document 
and be taken away for further work. He felt there was a lot of work 
to be done on the costs and believed that he was yet to be 
convinced that the two strategies would present a cost benefit.

The Chairman asked why a date of April 2019 had been given for 
implementation of the two strategies. He asked why this date 
seemed to be required. It was stated that this was due to an audit 
requirement for CPBS due to the need to replace the current 
Customer Relationship Management System and to coincide with 
the launch of the Council’s Corporate Plan.

Members asked that if the report were to be re-presented, there 
should be a properly detailed section on risk and that the reports 
should be re-presented in good time.

The Portfolio Holder for Finance asked that all costings relating to 
these strategies would be presented to him in the future.

AGREED:

Page 18



- 5 -

JOINT PERFORMANCE MONITORING 
PANEL AND POLICY DEVELOPMENT 
PANEL - 1 November 2018

a) That the content of the Customer Access Strategy report 
and attached draft Customer Access Strategy be noted.

b) That the contents of the ICT & Digital strategy report, 
together with the attached draft ICT and Digital Strategy 
and Digital Work Programme, be noted.

c) That both reports be strengthened with the inclusion of 
further supporting evidence.

d) That officers take away both strategies to add further 
details, with special attention made to including details on 
costing, the business case, risk assessment and ensuring 
that all documents are tailored specifically for SHDC.

e) That the potential of re-presenting both reports to further 
scrutiny Committees in the future before the final decision 
is made, be examined by officers. 

f) That all future costing matters on the topic of these two 
strategies be passed to the Portfolio Holder for Finance.

 

10. CORPORATE PLAN 2019-23 

Consideration was given to the report of the Executive Director of 
Strategy and Governance which sought to consult with the Joint 
Performance Monitoring Panel and Policy Development Panel on 
the content of the new draft corporate plan for the period 2019-
2023. 

AGREED:

That the content of the draft Corporate Plan be noted. 

11. ANY OTHER ITEMS WHICH THE CHAIRMAN DECIDES ARE 
URGENT 

There were none. 

(The meeting ended at 8.26 pm)

(End of minutes)

Page 19



- 6 -

JOINT PERFORMANCE MONITORING 
PANEL AND POLICY DEVELOPMENT 
PANEL - 1 November 2018

Page 20



1

KEY DECISION PLAN Issued – 17 January 2019

Representations in respect of all the matters shown should be sent in writing, at least one week before the date or period the decision 
is likely to be made, to: 

 Democratic Services, Council Offices, Priory Road, Spalding, Lincolnshire, PE11 2XE
Telephone: 01775 764451 Fax: 01775 711253 Email: demservices@sholland.gov.uk

The Key Decision Plan shows all Key decisions that the Council is likely to make over the next twelve months

The Key Decision Plan is updated on a rolling basis and shows the decisions that will be considered and the date when the decision is 
expected to be made. In accordance with the Council’s Constitution the DECISIONS detailed within this document, unless otherwise 
stated, come into force and may then be implemented on the expiry of a 5 working day call-in period  from the date of publication of 
any decision.  

Key decisions are: “A decision which, in relation to an executive function, has a significant effect on communities in two or more 
Wards of the Council and / or is likely to result in the Authority incurring expenditure, generating income or making savings in any 
single financial year above the threshold of £75,000 in respect of revenue expenditure and £180,000 in respect of capital expenditure.”

Significant decisions are: 1. A decision made in connection with setting the Council Tax; 2. A decision to approve any matter relating 
to a Policy or Strategic Plan; 3. Any non-Executive decision which significantly affects the community in two or more wards or electoral 
divisions. Some of the decisions will be recommendations to full Council, particularly if they impact on the Budget and the Policy 
Framework (comprising of statutory plans and strategies)

PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT

PURPOSE OF DECISION CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS

LIKELY DATE OF 
DECISION AND WHO 

WILL MAKE DECISION

P
age 21

A
genda Item

 8

mailto:demservices@sholland.gov.uk


PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT

PURPOSE OF DECISION CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS

LIKELY DATE OF 
DECISION AND WHO 

WILL MAKE DECISION

2

PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT

PURPOSE OF DECISION CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS

LIKELY DATE OF 
DECISION AND WHO 

WILL MAKE DECISION
Portfolio Holder 
for Corporate 
Delivery and 
Strategic 
Oversight

A report 
concerning a 
proposed HRA 
development at 
Small Drove, 
Weston

To consider a business case in relation 
to the development of 34 affordable 
homes at Small Drove, Weston.

South Holland District 
Council 23 Jan 2019

Portfolio Holder 
for Housing and 
Health

New sewerage 
maintenance 
contract for 
council housing 
stock

To award new sewerage maintenance 
contract for the housing stock.

Portfolio Holder for 
Housing Landlord, 
Housing Manager.

Informal meetings and 
discussions.

Housing Landlord 
Manager Before 31 Jan 
2019

P
age 22



PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT

PURPOSE OF DECISION CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS

LIKELY DATE OF 
DECISION AND WHO 

WILL MAKE DECISION

3

PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT

PURPOSE OF DECISION CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS

LIKELY DATE OF 
DECISION AND WHO 

WILL MAKE DECISION
Portfolio Holder 
for Place

Car Parking 
Recommendatio
ns

To review the recommendations for car 
parking provision in SHDC owned car 
parks prior to statutory consultation

Cabinet 12 Feb 2019

Leader

Records 
Management 
Policy

To approve a shared Records 
Management Policy (incorporating 
Retention Policy) for both South 
Holland District Council and Breckland 
District Council

Cabinet 12 Mar 2019

Portfolio Holder 
for Housing and 
Health

Flat Roof 
replacement and 
repairs Contract

For the replacement of various types of 
flat roofs to Council Dwellings, 
outbuildings and garages, which have 
reached the end of their lifespan and 
require replacement or repairs.

Housing Landlord 
Manager Before 31 Mar 
2019

P
age 23



PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT

PURPOSE OF DECISION CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS

LIKELY DATE OF 
DECISION AND WHO 

WILL MAKE DECISION

4

PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT

PURPOSE OF DECISION CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS

LIKELY DATE OF 
DECISION AND WHO 

WILL MAKE DECISION
Portfolio Holder 
for Housing and 
Health

Chimney repairs, 
repointing and 
removal Contract

For the Chimney repairs, repointing 
and removal including Pitched roof 
repairs to various council dwellings as 
identified in reaching the end of their 
lifespan, or the chimney is no longer 
required.

Housing Landlord 
Manager Before 31 Mar 
2019

Portfolio Holder 
for Housing and 
Health

General Repairs 
- Maintenance of 
footpaths, 
roadways and 
boundary walls.

For the external general repairs for 
concrete footpaths, roadways and 
boundary walls, serving council 
dwellings and garages, which have 
reached the end of their lifespan and 
require replacement or repairs.

Housing Landlord 
Manager Before 31 Mar 
2019

P
age 24



PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT

PURPOSE OF DECISION CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS

LIKELY DATE OF 
DECISION AND WHO 

WILL MAKE DECISION

5

PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT

PURPOSE OF DECISION CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS

LIKELY DATE OF 
DECISION AND WHO 

WILL MAKE DECISION
Portfolio Holder 
for Housing and 
Health

CSU Building 
Materials 
Contract

To award a contract. Portfolio Holder for 
Housing. 

Meetings and discussions. 

Housing Landlord 
Manager Before 30 Apr 
2019

Portfolio Holder 
for Housing and 
Health

CSU Electrical 
Materials Supply 
Contract (EMSC) 
2017 - 2021

To award the EMSC to the successful 
supplier from the outcome of the 
procurement process Meetings and discussions

Officer Decisions Before 
30 Apr 2019

*Cabinet Membership

P
age 25



PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT

PURPOSE OF DECISION CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS

LIKELY DATE OF 
DECISION AND WHO 

WILL MAKE DECISION

6

The Lord Porter of Spalding CBE (Leader)
Councillor C N Worth (Deputy Leader of the Council)
Councillor M G Chandler (Deputy Leader)
Councillor T Carter (Portfolio Holder)
Councillor A Casson (Portfolio Holder)
Councillor P E Coupland (Portfolio Holder)
Councillor R Gambba-Jones (Portfolio Holder)
Councillor C Johnson (Portfolio Holder)
Councillor C J Lawton (Portfolio Holder)
Councillor G J Taylor (Portfolio Holder)

If you have any comments or queries regarding any of the entries in the Key Decision Plan please contact:

Democratic Services, Council Offices, Priory Road, Spalding, Lincolnshire, PE11 2XE
Telephone: 01775 764451 Fax: 01775 711253 Email: demservices@sholland.gov.uk

P
age 26

mailto:demservices@sholland.gov.uk


SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL

Report of: Executive Member for Strategy, Governance and Transformation, 
Executive Manager People and Public Protection, Portfolio Holder 
Governance and Customer

To: Performance Monitoring Panel 30th January 2019 
Cabinet 12th February 2019

Author: Corey Gooch – Senior Business Intelligence Officer

Subject: Performance Overview Report – Quarter 3 2018/19

Purpose: To provide an update on how the Council is performing for the 
period 1 October 2018 to 31 December 2018

Recommendation(s): 

1)  To note the content of the report

1.0 BACKGROUND

The Quarter 3 2018-19 Performance Report detailed in Appendix A aims to provide 
Members, businesses and residents with information relating to how the Council is 
performing in regards to the delivery of services and against the aims and objectives 
as set out in the Council’s Corporate Plan. 

In addition the aim of the covering report is to highlight performance specifically where 
performance has improved or declined as well as what officers are doing to address 
these areas. 

1.0 Key Performance Indicators

Quarter 3 has seen improvements in performance since this period last year however 
we have not seen many significant changes from Quarter 2 in respect of overall 
performance, 12 were rated as green, 1 as amber and 4 as red. There are 7 Data 
only indicators which means they are monitored without requiring a target.

Page 27

Agenda Item 9



Q1
2015/1

6

Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1
2016/1

7

Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1
2017/1

8

Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1
2018/1

9

Q2 Q3
0

5

10

15

20

25

30

Red Amber Green

Performance Indicator Status FY 2018/19

The highlight breakdown of the reportable indicators are shown below against the 
previous quarter (Jul 18 – Sept 18)

Indicator Quarter 3 (Oct 
18 – Dec 18)

Quarter 2 (Jul 
18 – Sept 18)

Gross Income EHT&C
Complaint Response Times
FOI Response Times
Household Waste Recycled/Composted
Missed Waste Collection
Commercial Property Occupancy
Staff Turnover
Working Days lost to Sickness
Housing Re-Let Times
Empty Properties back in use
Businesses Assisted via G4G
G4g Grants Awarded
Non-Major Planning application Determination times
Major Planning application Determination times
Housing Benefit LA Error Rate
Business Rate in Year collection rate
Council Tax in Year Collection Rate
% of due rent collected on Welland Homes Properties

1.1 Areas of Success

Housing re-let performance (page 14) continues to perform strongly and is shown as 
performing above target for the third consecutive month, nearly £1,000 was saved in 
rent lost due to void properties when compared to Q2 with the longest void property at 
26 days. In comparison most of the other void property lengths were less than 15. This 
sustained increase in performance can be attributed to the Place review as well as the 
recent appointment of the new Housing Manager who has been working with the 

Page 28



Corporate Improvement Team to review and simplify a number of different processes 
within the service. 

There was a significant reduction in the number of officer days lost through sickness 
(page 11) in the last quarter, down from 552 days for quarter 2 to 374 at the end of 
quarter 3. This shows as a significant improvement and equates to circa £14,000 in 
increased productivity. 

There were only three leavers in quarter 3 which equates to 1.27% of the total 
establishment against a target of 4.3%. This along with the reduction in the number of 
days lost through sickness should be seen as a positive and a measure of wider staff 
morale (page 10)

There has been a significant reduction in the number of calls abandoned in this quarter 
(page 6), call volume dropped by around 14% which is common around December time 
but more importantly the abandonment rate dropped by around 60% which is a much 
higher figure than we would normally see and this is positive. The most important factor 
in has been reduction in the number of long term sickness cases within the contact 
centre, all staff who were previously on long term sick are now back in work and cross 
training of staff within the contact centre continues to show good results.

Planning application determination times (page 20) also continues to perform well for 
moth major and non-major planning applications. External benchmarking from the 
Performance team also demonstrates that nationally South Holland sit in the top quartile 
for this figure.

1.3 Areas for Improvement

Reporting for missed bin collections (page 8) in quarter 3 is shown as underperforming 
with a total number of 43 missed collections against every 100,000 collections due. 
With this said, a number of these missed collections were as a result of reduced 
vehicular access as a result of roadworks therefore making the bins impossible to 
collect. Where this has occurred the refuse has been collected at the next possible 
opportunity. Work is on-going within Environmental Services and the Corporate 
Improvement Team to review how missed collections are reported. This is to ensure 
that we only record missed collections which have been in our control.

The number of Freedom of Information requests responded to within the statutory 
timescale of 20 working days (page 4) is currently shown as underperforming with 78% 
of all requests being responded to within time against a target of 100%. Significant 
improvement work has been undertaken in this area and the total number responded 
to within time continues to rise month on month. In addition and as a result of the 
digitalisation of how requests are processed, the number of FOIs received by the 
services have reduced significantly, therefore increasing capacity to respond within 20 
working days. The Corporate Improvement Team are confident that the steps taken to 
date will realise an increase in performance within Q4 continuing into the new financial 
year.  

In terms of FOI trends and volumes, around 40% of our FOIs were sent to the housing 
team (specifically around homelessness and social housing figures and breakdowns) 
20% to the environmental services team (specifically costs and fly-tipping/litter 
offences) and 15% to our community teams (specifically enforcement and leisure 
spend) This analysis on trends for SHDC FOIs has been recently undertaken and the 

Page 29



CIP team is in the process of working with teams to understand their trends and 
frequently asked questions and look at ways of making this information available on 
the website in order to reduce future FOIs of the same nature.

Gross income generated by EHT&C (page 1) is under target for this quarter by around 
£10,000 and in order to ensure next year end financial targets are met the team are 
working on a number of pieces of work which include the refresh of the website which 
targets the EHTC website to go live early February in order to establish a bigger online 
presence. The team will also be working on Search Engine Optimisation improvements 
to improve on-line visibility and conversion rates. Additionally there will be revised and 
specific targets and objectives re-issued to teams. The EHTC Marketing plan will also 
be revised to focus on certain products and targeted customers.

Business Rates in year collection rate (page 22) is currently 0.91% behind target 
(0.91% behind last month). Recovery action is being taken in line with the teams robust 
recovery timetable. Recent awards of discretionary rate relief and backdated 
amendments to the rating list have had an adverse impact on collection rates. These 
revised liabilities will become payable and collected over the remainder of the financial 
year. There is an additional 0.71% (of the overall annual collectable debit) due and 
payable by instalments from ratepayers during February and March compared to last 
financial year. The team anticipate that the end of year target will be achieved and that 
performance will be in line with last year.

 

2.0 Recommendation

That the contents of the report be noted

3.0 EXPECTED BENEFITS

3.1 The Council’s performance is properly scrutinised.

5.0 IMPLICATIONS

5.1 Constitution & Legal

 The report is made within the terms of reference of the Performance Monitoring 
Panel.

5.2 Corporate Priorities

The report presents progress monitoring of performance of the corporate priorities.

5.3 Financial

The report contains information on Council’s performance which does convey 
some information relating to financial matters.

Page 30



5.4 Reputation

Performance issues can cause some reputational consequence.  It is the purpose 
of this report to highlight performance issues at an early stage.

5.5 Risk Management

Performance issues may be subject to risk management measures to protect 
Council interests.

5.6 Staffing

The report contains information relating to staffing issues.

6.0       WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED 

6.1       No Wards or Communities are affected 

7.0       ACRONYMS 

PMP – Performance Monitoring Panel
LA – Local Authority

Background papers:- See The Committee Report Guide

Background papers:- None

Lead Contact Officer
Name and Post: Ross Bangs  – Corporate Improvement & Performance 

Manager
Telephone Number: 07870835233
Email: ross.bangs@breckland-sholland.gov.uk 

Director / Officer who will be attending the Meeting
Name and Post: Corey Gooch – Senior Business Intelligence Officer

Key Decision: No

Exempt Decision: No

Appendices attached to this report: 
Appendix A Quarter 3 Performance Report

Page 31

file:///C:/Users/CharlottePaine/Democratic%20Services/Committee/Committee/Report%20Guide/2014/THE%20COMMITTEE%20REPORT%20GUIDE_JUNE%202014.doc
file:///C:/Users/CharlottePaine/Democratic%20Services/Committee/Committee/Report%20Guide/2014/THE%20COMMITTEE%20REPORT%20GUIDE_JUNE%202014.doc
mailto:greg.pearson@breckland-sholland.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



1

2018/19 Q3 SHDC PMP Report

Generated on: 10 January 2019

         

         

Indicator Gross income generated by EHT&C Trend Chart

 

Same Period Last Year

Numerator Denominator Value

Q3 2017/18 N/A N/A N/A

Current Performance

Numerator Denominator Value

Q3 2018/19 N/A N/A £60,000.00

 Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

The amount of gross 
income generated by the 
Environmental Health, 
Training and consultancy 
commercial trading arm

 

£78,750.00

 

Higher is better as we look to generate more 
income from our environmental health training 
and consultancy department

Figures contain orders which have been invoiced, plus existing 
orders. The overall predicted out turn for Q3 will be around £10k 
under target.
The team are working on a number of pieces of work which include 
the refresh of the website which targets the EHTC website to go live 
early February.
Also will be looking at Search Engine Optimisation improvements (to 
improve on-line visibility and conversion rates).
Additionally there will be revised and specific targets and objectives 
re-issued to teams.
The EHTC Marketing plan will also be revised to focus on certain 
products and target customers.

P
age 33



2

     
 

   

         

        

Indicator Time to process DFG Applications Trend Chart

 

Same Period Last Year

Numerator Denominator Value

Q3 2017/18 N/A N/A N/A

Current Performance

Numerator Denominator Value

Q3 2018/19 N/A N/A 201

 Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

Overall average time 
in days from 
appointment to 
completion. 

 
Data Only

 
Lower is better as we look to process 
applications in the shortest time 
possible

Processing time slightly higher in this quarter with no 
particular concerns highlighted

      

 

 

P
age 34



3

 
         

Indicator % of complaints responded to within agreed timescales Trend Chart

 

Same Period Last Year

Complaints in 
Timescale

Complaints 
Responded To

Value

Q3 2017/18 33 54 61.11%

Current Performance

Complaints in 
Timescale

Complaints 
Responded To

Value

Q3 2018/19 50 62 80.65%

 Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

the percentage of the 
complaints that were 
responded to within the 
period, that were 
responded to within the 
agreed timescales (15 
day stage 1, 20 days 
stage 2)

 

80%

 

 Higher is better as we look to respond to 
all our complaints within the agreed 
timescales set out on our website

Very positive response times can be seen in this quarter which 
can be attributed to the corporate improvement and 
performance teams focus on working with the services to help 
understand complaints as well as work to ensure service 
issues are identified and resolved as soon as possible.

    

 

  

 

 

P
age 35



4

         

Indicator % of FOI requests responded to within time limit Trend Chart

 

Same Period Last Year
Number 
responded in 
time

Number due in 
month

Value

Q3 2017/18 59%
Current Performance

Number 
responded in 
time

Number due in 
month

Value

Q3 2018/19 54 69 78%

 Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

Of the FOI's 
responded to in the 
month, the 
percentage of ones 
that were 
responded to within 
the statutory 20 day 
timescale

 

100%

 

Higher is better as we aim to 
respond to all our FOI requests 
within the statutory times set out

Our FOI response times are the best they have ever 
been but with 15 out of the 69 received not 
meeting the response deadlines this leaves the 
score still below the optimal targets, whilst positive 
work has been undertaken with the services 
especially in relation to reducing incoming numbers 
further work has now commenced with services to 
encourage the services to publish frequently 
requested data online.

P
age 36



5

        

Indicator Number of Vexatious Customer Registrations Trend Chart

 

Same Period Last Year

Numerator Denominator Value

Q3 2017/18 N/A N/A 0

Current Performance

Numerator Denominator Value

Q3 2018/19 N/A N/A 0

 Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

This Performance 
measure monitors the 
number of customers 
who have been made 
vexatious in the time 
period.
The vexatious 
application is managed 
via the Corporate 
Complaints team and 
the Legal team.  

 Data Only
 
 N/A There have been no vexatious customer registrations in this 

quarter

     

 

   

P
age 37



6

         

Indicator % of Calls Abandoned Trend Chart

 

Same Period Last Year

Calls Abandoned Calls Received Value

Q3 2017/18 1,186 26,634 4.45%

Current Performance

Calls Abandoned Calls Received Value

Q3 2018/19 1,295 26,644 4.86%

 Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

% of calls that are 
abandoned (call 
terminated prior to 
answering), excluding 
those abandoned within 
5 seconds. 
 
This is a combined 
measure across 
Customer Contact, 
Revenues and Benefits 
calls 

 

Data Only 

 

A lower % is better as we look to answer 
more calls

Whilst call volume dropped by around 14% for Q3 from Q2 the 
amount of calls abandoned dropped by 60% which is positive. 
Q3 has seen the lowest abandonment rates of the year so far 
but it is important to note call volumes are often lower at this 
period in the year. Long term sickness has improved 
significantly in the service which has had a really positive 
impact and cross training of staff also continues to show 
success.

     

 

   

         

P
age 38



7

Indicator % of household waste recycled or composted Trend Chart

 

Same Period Last Year

Numerator Denominator Value

Q3 2017/18 32.29%

Current Performance

Numerator Denominator Value

Q3 2018/19 33.06%

 Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

% of household waste 
which has been recycled 
and composted 
(includes garden waste) 
against all the 
household waste 
collected

 

31.77%
 

A higher % is better as we look to recycle 
or compost more waste

% of household waste recycled or composted continues to 
perform above target and has not been affected by the winter 
months

     

 

   

         

P
age 39



8

Indicator Missed Waste Collection Rate Trend Chart

 

Same Period Last Year

Number of missed 
collections

Per 100,000 collection 
figure

Value

Q3 2017/18 397 10.185 39

Current Performance

Number of missed 
collections

Per 100,000 collection 
figure

Value

Q3 2018/19 440 10.185 43

 Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

Number of missed 
collections per 100,000 
people

 

33

 

A lower number is better as we look to ensure 
fewer waste collections are missed

The number of missed collections have increased over the last couple 
of months due to the amount of road works being carried out in 
various locations in the district. In addition some roads are 
inaccessible due to parked vehicle blocking our vehicles access.

Work is in progress with the CIP team in respect to missed collections 
to identify any process improvements that could be made to benefit 
this indicator as well.

         

     

 

   

P
age 40



9

Indicator Commercial Property Occupancy Trend Chart

 

Same Period Last Year
Number of units 
let

Total number of 
units

Value

Q3 2017/18 49.667 50 99.33%
Current Performance

Number of units 
let

Total number of 
units

Value

Q3 2018/19 48.333 50 96.67%

 Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

Occupancy levels of 
the council's 
industrial units  

 
90%

 
A higher number is better as we 
look to rent out as many council 
owned industrial units as possible

Commercial property occupancy remains the same 
as the asset management strategy is under review

     

 

   

         

P
age 41



10

Indicator Staff turnover % Trend Chart

 

Same Period Last Year

Number of leavers in 
period

Total number of staff 
in period

Value

Q3 2017/18 10 221 4.52%

Current Performance

Number of leavers in 
period

Total number of staff 
in period

Value

Q3 2018/19 3 237 1.27%

 Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

% of total leavers 
against total number of 
staff employed in period 
(includes involuntary 
leavers) 
 
Target is 10% which has 
been benchmarked 

 

4.3%

 

Lower is better as we look to retain staff It is positive to note that there were only 3 leavers in Q3, 
Overall number of staff employed remains high and the month 
of December saw nobody leave the organisation and this is a 
positive reflection of the review of services and procedures 
within the organisation, such turnover can also be linked to 
positive morale and the retaining of high quality staff but it 
would be too early to pinpoint these turnover rates to one 
single factor at this stage.

     

 

 

 

 

         

P
age 42



11

Indicator Working Days Lost to Sickness per FTE Trend Chart

 

Same Period Last Year

Number of days 
lost

Number of FTE Value

Q3 2017/18 519.41 201.08 2.58

Current Performance

Number of days 
lost

Number of FTE Value

Q3 2018/19 374.84 217 1.72

 Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

Total number of 
working days lost per 
Full Time Equivalent.
This is calculated by 
taking the number of 
days lost to sickness 
and dividing it by the 
number of full time 
equivalent staff in the 
period

 

2.5

 

Lower is better as we look to reduce 
the amount of working time lost to 
sickness 

Overall working days lost to sickness has reduced 
significantly in this quarter and it is very pleasing to 
note that for Q3 the council is reporting the lowest 
sickness rates that have been recorded on our systems, 
this reflects on the positive changes made throughout 
last year through service reviews as well as HR schemes 
and training to help manage sickness and encourage 
positive health and wellbeing in the workforce.

P
age 43



12

Indicator Working Days Lost to Long Term Sickness per FTE Trend Chart

 

Same Period Last Year
Number of days 
lost - long term

Number of FTE Value

Q3 2017/18 410.87 201.8 2.04
Current Performance

Number of days 
lost - long term

Number of FTE Value

Q3 2018/19 267 217.28 1.27

 Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

Number of working 
days lost per Full 
Time Equivalent for 
long term sickness. 
This is calculated by 
taking the number 
of days lost to long 
term sickness and 
dividing it by the 
number of full time 
equivalent staff in 
the period  

 

 Data Only

 

Lower is better as we look to 
reduce the amount of working time 
lost to sickness  

Instances of long term sickness reduced by 43% 
since last quarter which is significant and this can 
be attributed to the work done by HR with services 
and managers (phased return to work processes, 
frequent contact with managers, reasonable 
adjustment procedures etc.)

        

P
age 44



13

 

         

Indicator Working Days Lost to Short Term Sickness per FTE Trend Chart

 

Same Period Last Year
Number of days 
lost - short term

Number of FTE Value

Q3 2017/18 108.55 201.8 0.54
Current Performance

Number of days 
lost - short term

Number of FTE Value

Q3 2018/19 107.84 217.28 0.49

 Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

Number of working 
days lost per Full 
Time Equivalent for 
short term sickness. 
This is calculated by 
taking the number 
of days lost to long 
term sickness and 
dividing it by the 
number of full time 
equivalent staff in 
the period  

 

 Data Only

 

Lower is better as we look to 
reduce the amount of working time 
lost to sickness  

Short term sickness wen up slightly for Q3 but this 
is quite expected for the months of November and 
December where winter colds and flu often affects 
short term sickness stats

       

 

 

         

P
age 45



14

Indicator Housing re-let (void) time (total ave. key to key) All Tenures Trend Chart

 

Same Period Last Year

Total # days void Total # properties 
void

Value

Q3 2017/18 2,066 63 33 days

Current Performance

Total # days void Total # properties 
void

Value

Q3 2018/19 1,124 55 20 days

 Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

Total time in days 
from keys in to keys 
out - including major 
works for all tenures 
(General Needs and 
Sheltered Housing) 
This is calculated by 
total number of days 
properties remain 
vacant divided by the 
number or properties 
vacant in the period 

 

28 days

 

Lower is better as we look to reduce 
the number of days vacant and 
therefore not receiving rent payments 

It is pleasing to note that housing re-let (void) times are 
at the best and lowest times we have recorded, the 
housing service have reported they are making better 
use of their data within the service and using it to 
manage time and efficiencies which is being supported 
by the CIP team in their performance and improvement 
work. The team within housing have also refined key 
handover processes as well as a review of all areas of the 
service to ensure they are achieving maximum efficiency 
whilst also maintaining high tenant satisfaction.

         

         

P
age 46



15

Indicator Cases Prevented from Homelessness Trend Chart

 

Same Period Last Year

Numerator Denominator Value

Q3 2017/18 N/A N/A 74

Current Performance

Numerator Denominator Value

Q3 2018/19 N/A N/A 52

 Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

P1E Return - 
Prevention and 
Relieving of 
Homelessness
Number of potentially 
homeless cases 
diverted from 
homelessness in the 
District

 

Data Only 

 

This is not a targeted measure. The 
number does not reflect % of cases 
prevented from homelessness and 
therefore will fluctuate dependent 
upon demand to the service. 

The systems and processes are now in place to 
effectively measure homelessness prevention within the 
district, please note this figure is no longer per 1,000 as 
this is not how the new systems and returns measure 
the figure, going forward these figures will be analysed 
and the homelessness procedures will be reviewed to 
understand where efficiencies and improvements sit.

        

P
age 47



16

 

         

Indicator Empty Properties - Back In Use Trend Chart

 

Same Period Last Year
Numerator Denominator Value

Q3 2017/18 N/A N/A 9
Current Performance

Numerator Denominator Value
Q3 2018/19 N/A N/A 6

 Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

Number of empty 
properties brought 
back into use 
through 
intervention by the 
council

 

25

 

Higher is better as we look to bring 
as many empty homes back into 
use as possible

There has been a drop in the number of empty 
properties back in use when compared to the score 
of 43 for the last quarter, there will be a push from 
the service to identify more properties and bring 
them back into use for Q4 to ensure the target of 
100 per annum is met.

     

` 

   

         

P
age 48



17

Indicator Businesses Assisted to Develop or Grow via Grants4Growth Trend Chart

 

Same Period Last Year

Numerator Denominator Value

Q3 2017/18 N/A N/A 28

Current Performance

Numerator Denominator Value

Q3 2018/19 N/A N/A 27

 Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

Number of existing 
businesses assisted 
to develop or grow 
through Economic 
Development support 
- Grants for Growth 

 
6

 
 N/A Grants4Growth continues to perform above target as 

work continues with the inward investment team 
supporting businesses within the district

   

 

   

 

 

P
age 49



18

         

Indicator Number of Grants Awarded via Grants4Growth Trend Chart

 

Same Period Last Year

Numerator Denominator Value

Q3 2017/18 N/A N/A 34

Current Performance

Numerator Denominator Value

Q3 2018/19 N/A N/A 19

 Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

Total number of 
grants that are 
awarded - grants for 
growth 

 
13

 
 19 grants were awarded in this quarter which sits above 

the target of 13 minimum

        

Indicator % of non-major applications determined within 8 weeks or agreed extension Trend Chart

This PI measures the % 
of non-major 
applications that have 
been determined within 
8 weeks or agreed 
extension, this is in line 
with national 
requirements.

 

Same Period Last Year

Minor Applications in 
Time

Total Minor Apps 
Decided

Value

Q3 2017/18 N/A N/A N/A

Current Performance

Minor Applications in 
Time

Total Minor Apps 
Decided

Value

Q3 2018/19 124 138 89.86%

P
age 50



19

 Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

 

70%

 

We look to achieve the highest amount 
possible as we aim to determine all non-
major planning applications within 8 
weeks or agreed extension as set out with 
national requirements

Figures is above target, this demonstrates a proactive 
approach to working with applicants by the Planning service.

      

 
 

 

         

Indicator % of Major applications determined within 13 weeks or agreed extension Trend Chart

% determined within 
13 weeks (or with 
agreed extension or 
PPA) 

 

Same Period Last Year

# major apps 
detrm in 13 or 
extn

# major 
applications 
determined

Value

Q3 2017/18 3 3 100%

Current Performance

# major apps 
detrm in 13 or 

# major 
applications 

Value

P
age 51



20

extn determined

Q3 2018/19 24 25 96%

 Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

 

60%

 

Higher is better as we aim to 
determine all major applications 
within 13 weeks or the agreed 
extension

This measure continues to perform above target and 
also shows the significance and importance of agreeing 
extensions of time with planning applicants. There were 
25 applications to be determined for Q3 which is the 
highest the service has had recorded on performance 
systems, therefore it is pleasing to note determination 
times did not suffer as a consequence of the higher 
volumes.

       

 

 

         

Indicator Housing Benefit LA Error Rate Trend Chart

P
age 52



21

 

Same Period Last Year

Error expenditure Total housing benefit 
expend

Value

Q3 2017/18 21,531.5 12,743,846.27 0.17%

Current Performance

Error expenditure Total housing benefit 
expend

Value

Q3 2018/19 21,097.54 12,077,781.59 0.17%

 Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

Local Authority error in 
Housing Benefit 
overpayment 
Amount of benefits 
overpaid divided by 
benefits paid (% of overall 
expenditure) 

 

0.42%

 

Lower is better as we look to minimise the 
amount of money paid in error and reduce the 
risk of financial penalty (which occurs above 
0.48%) 

It is pleasing to report a further decrease of 0.03% in the total LA 
error amount since the last quarter, which remains under the lower 
threshold and attracting full subsidy for 2018/19.

     

 

 

 

 

         

Indicator Business Rate In Year Collection Rate Trend Chart

P
age 53



22

 

Same Period Last Year

In year collection 
amount

Total collectable debit Value

Q3 2017/18 22,201,381.92 26,505,982.58 83.76%

Current Performance

In year collection 
amount

Total collectable debit Value

Q3 2018/19 22,385,898.92 27,037,942.57 82.79%

 Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

Amount of Business Rates 
collected in the year 
against the total 
collectable debit 

 

83.7%

 

Higher is better as we look to collect as much 
of the business rates debit as possible 

We are currently 0.91% behind target (0.91% behind last month). 
Recovery action is being taken in line with our robust recovery 
timetable. Recent awards of discretionary rate relief and backdated 
amendments to the rating list have had an adverse impact on 
collection rates. These revised liabilities will become payable and 
collected over the remainder of the financial year. There is an 
additional 0.71% (of the overall annual collectable debit) due and 
payable by instalments from ratepayers during February and March 
compared to last financial year. We anticipate that the end of year 
target will be achieved and that performance will be in line with last 
year.

         

   

 

     

Indicator Council Tax In Year Collection Rate Trend Chart

P
age 54



23

 

Same Period Last Year

In year collection 
amount

Total collectable debit Value

Q3 2017/18 37,032,507.62 43,307,692.28 85.51%

Current Performance

In year collection 
amount

Total collectable debit Value

Q3 2018/19 39,336,808.2 46,224,066.49 85.1%

 Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

Amount of Council Tax 
collected in the year 
against the total 
collectable debit 

 

85.5%

 

Higher is better as we look to collect as much 
of the Council Tax debit as possible 

Performance is currently 0.40% below target (0.38 last month).  Over 
the previous financial quarter we have seen in increase in the 
collectable debit a result of changes to discounts and new properties 
entering the valuation list. Whilst this has been billed it is payable 
over the remainder of the financial year. Recovery action is being 
taken in line with our robust recovery timetable. We recognise that 
the impact of Local Council Tax Support and the role out of Universal 
Credit within the district is likely to have an adverse impact on 
collection but this will be monitored closely over the year.  We 
anticipate that the end of year performance will be in line with 
previous year's performance

         

    

 

   

         

P
age 55



24

Indicator New Homes Enabled Trend Chart

 

Same Period Last Year

Numerator Denominator Value

Q3 2017/18 N/A N/A 31

Current Performance

Numerator Denominator Value

Q3 2018/19 N/A N/A 117

 Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

The number of new 
homes enabled by the 
authority from direct 
intervention

 

 

 

Higher is better as we look to deliver 
more new homes

For Q3 the 117 new homes have all been through 
enabling, from a mix of encouraging Registered Provider 
partners to develop new schemes locally (St Johns Road, 
Spalding), to permitting schemes with lower planning 
obligations to improve the overall viability of the scheme 
where there is verified evidence to support this. 

       

P
age 56



25

 

Indicator % of due rent collected on Welland homes properties Trend Chart

 

Same Period Last Year

Due rent actually 
collected

Due rent to be 
collected

Value

Q3 2017/18 10,400 10,400 100

Current Performance

Due rent actually 
collected

Due rent to be 
collected

Value

Q3 2018/19 11,075 11,075 100

 Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

The percentage of 
rent collected from 
maximum possible 
rent to be collected

 

95

 

A higher % is better as we look to 
collect as much of the due rent as 
possible

No remittance for one property, but 2 x months have 
been paid for another property which has balanced out 
the figure for this month, the unpaid rent will be 
resolved in due course with the property mentioned.

 

P
age 57



T
his page is intentionally left blank



SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL

Report of: Rob Walker, or Executive Director - Place

To: Performance Monitoring Panel Wednesday, 30 January 2019 

(Author: Dee Bedford Community Safety & Enforcement Manager)

Subject Enforcement Update

Purpose: To provide Members with an update on enforcement activity

Recommendation(s): 

1) That the content of the report be noted

2) That a further update is provided to the performance monitoring panel in six months’ time

1.0 BACKGROUND

1.1 Enforcement activity in the council is extensive and includes planning enforcement, 
contraventions of building regulations, littering, fly-tipping, anti-social behaviour, abandoned 
vehicles, evictions, possessions, prohibitions orders, food safety, health and safety, 
licensing, noise nuisance and pollution. The activity covers individuals, public areas, homes 
and businesses.

1.2 All departments involved in enforcement continue to do so in line with the Enforcement 
Policy approved on 29th May 2018 at Cabinet. The tables below show the enforcement 
activity by service area prior to the introduction of the new policy and since its introduction.

1.3 Enforcement figures prior to introduction of the policy (January – May 2018)
*Additional Licensing data - none

Service No. informal 
notices/
warning 
letters

No. voluntary 
undertakings

No. Statutory 
notices

No. financial 
penalties

No. 
Injunctive 
Actions, 
Enforcement 
Orders etc.

No. of 
Simple 
Cautions

No. 
Prosecutions

Environmental 
Protection

170 0 0 0 0 0 0

Licensing* 6 0 0 0 0 0 0

Food, Health 
and Safety

128 0 4 0 0 0 1

Environmental 
Services

69 0 0 2 0 0 1

Communities 75 4 2 0 1 0 0
Planning 0 0 2 0 0 0 0
Housing 0 0 2 0 0 0 1

Page 59

Agenda Item 10



Building 
Control

5 133 0 0 0 0 0

1.4 Enforcement figures since the introduction of the policy (June – 31 December 2018)

*Additional licensing data - There were four premises licences suspended and one revoked 
under the Licensing Act 2003. There was also one application to transfer a premises 
licence and vary a Designated Premises Supervisor, which was refused. There was one 
immediate revocation of a taxi/private hire driver’s licence

Service No. informal 
notices/
warning 
letters

No. voluntary 
undertakings

No. Statutory 
notices

No. 
financial 
penalties

No. Injunctive 
Actions, 
Enforcement 
Orders etc.

No. of 
Simple 
Cautions

No. 
Prosecutions

Environmental 
Protection

348 0 0 0 0 0 0

Licensing* 2 0 0 0 0 0 0
Food, Health 
and Safety

133 0 3 0 0 0 0

Environmental 
Services

55 0 0 7 0 0 3

Communities 158 0 5 68 0 0 2
Planning 0 0 14 0 0 0 0
Housing 0 0 3 0 0 0 1
Building 
Control

8 274 0 0 0 0 0

1.4.1 The tables illustrate that the bulk of enforcement carried out by the Council is dealt with 
informally. Whilst prosecutions have increased in number over the second part of the year, 
the number of prosecutions and action that is more formal is less comparatively. This is in 
line with the Enforcement Policy, which states that best efforts should be taken to resolve 
any issues without taking formal action or referring the matter to the courts where minor 
offences have been committed and the Council is confident that appropriate corrective 
action will be taken. Where a business or individual is showing a flagrant disregard for the 
law and it is deemed that an informal approach is not appropriate, however, methods that 
are more formal have been pursued.

1.4.2 The number of informal notices and warning letters issued across the various service areas 
has increased in the second part of the year. The number of fixed penalty notices have also 
increased over this period. This is in part due to the appointment of two Community 
Wardens in mid-June who have issued 69 fixed penalty notices to date.

1.5 Enforcement Case Examples

1.5.1 Below are some example cases where enforcement action has been taken.

1.5.2 Case 1: Council Tax provided information to Private Sector Housing concerning a property, 
which Building Control Records stated, was two separate dwellings. They had not applied 
for building regulation approval to convert into one but the owner stated that it was now one 
dwelling occupied by a large family. On 13th November 2018 the owner was written to, to 

Page 60



advise that we would undertake a formal inspection on 20th November. The owner 
arranged access and a visit was carried out with Lincolnshire Police. On inspection, the 
property was found to have been converted into one dwelling and had three Category 1 
Hazards under the Housing Health & Safety Rating System.  These included falls on stairs 
and fire and Electrical Hazards. It was ascertained that despite the owner’s assurances that 
the property was a family let it was in fact a House in Multiple Occupation with between 8 
and 15 residents. The Hazards were deemed to present a risk of serious injury or death 
and could not be eliminated immediately. An Emergency Prohibition Order was therefore 
served on 23rd November 2018, which confirmed the works needed to be undertaken in 
order for the property to be occupied. The owner has since reinstated the property into two 
dwellings, completed all works required to revoke the prohibition order on one of the 
properties and is currently undertaking works on the other to ensure they comply.

1.5.3 Case 2: In October 2018, the Community Safety and Enforcement Team took two 
individuals to court following a breach of a Community Protection Notice. The case involved 
excessive noise coming from a property, which included arguments, banging, and loud 
television. Despite several attempts to resolve the problems through early intervention, the 
behaviour continued and a Community Protection Notice was issued. Further incidents 
occurred and working together with the Environmental Protection team who supported with 
their noise monitoring kit, sufficient evidence was available to prove a breach of the Notice 
and they received .They each received a two-year conditional discharge and were made to 
pay a £100 each towards costs and £20 victim surcharge. 

1.5.4 Case 3: Housing Officers completed an inspection on an SHDC property following a 
request for a mutual exchange. During the inspection, Officers entered a large construction 
in the garden, built by the tenant’s husband without the council’s permission. Inside the 
construction, were multiple pieces of electrical equipment running off multiple extensions. 
The tenant was informed that this presented a significant health and safety risk and would 
need assessing by a qualified electrician.  The tenant refused to un-plug any of the 
appliances.  The tenant also refused an electrician access to the property and used abusive 
language.  The electrician was able to confirm by sight that the wiring, external to the 
construction, was unsafe and supplied a report.  Officers applied to the courts and were 
granted an Injunction. Improvements have since been made to the property and visits will 
continue to ensure full compliance. 

1.6 Councillor Briefing Evening

1.6.1 A Councillor Briefing was held on 21st November to brief members and parish councils on 
the role of the Community Safety and Enforcement Team. A key message from the evening 
was in relation to the importance and value of a councillor’s role when residents report 
incidents to them.  Residents have confidence in their local members and share their 
concerns.  For action to be taken to resolve their issues and to provide the appropriate 
support, the key action needed is for the resident’s details (with their permission) to be 
passed to the team who will get in touch – or details of the team to be provided for the 
residents to direct report.   This is important to ensure that information is received first hand 
for evidential purposes and that the appropriate support can be offered to the victim.

1.6.2 The evening also provided an opportunity for councillors to meet the team, which included 
the Anti-Social Behaviour Officers, Community Wardens and the Support Officer for the 
team and members of Lincolnshire Police

Page 61



The evening was also a chance for Members and parish councils to see the new literature 
for victims of anti-social behaviour and an aid for councillors 

1.7 Community Wardens

1.7.1 The Community Wardens continue to patrol all areas of the district and have started to 
establish strong links with our local communities. The figures below show the impact they 
are beginning to have on the district:

Cumulative totals up until 14th January 2019:

Interactions 2836
Verbal Warnings 211
Fixed Penalty Notices 69

1.7.2 Their key focus over the last six months has been on high visibility patrols across the 
district and getting their faces known. Areas patrolled in the last month include Spalding, 
Sutton Bridge, Long Sutton, Pinchbeck, Holbeach, Tydd St Mary, Donington, Crowland, 
Cowbit. The focus of their patrols has been as a response to reports. An example of this is 
when the team were notified of glass and rat poison found in a well used open space to the 
east of the district.  The Wardens were tasked that afternoon to visit the area and carry out 
high visibility patrols. They looked for any evidence that remained and members of the 
public were spoken to. There has been ongoing engagement with the Parish Council where 
advice has been provided around the use of CCTV and signage.

1.7.3 To help increase the Wardens visibility the Community Safety and Enforcement Teams 
twitter account is used to post when they are at a location encouraging residents to come 
and talk to them. Work is underway to look at the use of Facebook for the team, including 
the Wardens to ensure they are visible to as many in the community as possible.

1.7.4 As referred to above, the Wardens have issued 69 Fixed Penalty Notices. These have 
predominantly been for littering that has been witnessed.   A clear message is being sent to 
those that offend, that it will not be tolerated and the council will take enforcement action.

1.8 Report it

1.8.1 Work continues to promote the ‘report it’ section on the council’s website. It is important that 
resident’s are supported with their concerns by encouraging them to report incidents to the 
council so that investigations can begin as quickly as possible. .

1.8.2 The Community Safety and Enforcement Team publicise this through their twitter account 
and hand out ‘Report It’ cards. The ‘Report it’ cards are the size of a credit card so can be 
kept in a resident’s purse/wallet. They are given out at events but also by the Community 
Wardens whilst out on patrol.

1.9 Fly Tipping

1.9.1 The Safer Lincolnshire Partnership Anti-Social Behaviour Core Priority Group has a priority 
to address environmental anti-social behaviour, with a key focus on littering and fly tipping 
in partnership.  This is both a local and countywide concern and effective ways of tackling 
the issue - both through enforcement and prevention are being reviewed.   It has just been 
agreed that a countywide group is going to be established to enable practitioners to share 
intelligence and good practice. 

1.9.2 The council has had three successful Court prosecutions in the last 6 months:

Page 62



1.9.3 Case A: Three fridges were fly tipped at South Drove, Spalding. Officers were provided with 
a vehicle registration number and the owner was identified.  No response from the vehicle 
owner was received.  Officers therefore applied to the courts under Section 108 of the 
Environment Act for failing to assist with enquiries. The Court found the case proven and as 
such, they were fined £660, Victim Surcharge of £66 and costs of £473.88. A collection 
order was made and the Defendant was given 28 days to pay in full..

1.9.4 Case B: Fly Tip including beds, furniture and domestic waste, at Quadring Fen. Offender 
had been paid to remove the waste from a property in Donington as he was advertising as 
a waste remover. The Council applied to the courts under Section 33 Environmental 
Protection Act (fly tipping) and on consideration of the matter the court fined them £1066 
with a victim surcharge of £106 and ordered to pay the costs of £515.18 making a total 
payable of £1687.18.

1.9.5 Case C: Building waste and domestic waste were fly tipped on Marsh Road, Sutton Bridge.  
The offender had employed an unlicensed person to remove waste and would not name 
them as they were related to the family. The Council applied to the courts under Section 
108 Environment Act & Section 34 Environmental Protection Act (Duty of Care) and the 
Magistrates were of the view that he showed genuine remorse and was of limited means so 
they imposed a fine of £100 and costs of £495.53 and a victim surcharge of £30 making a 
total payable of £625.53.

1.10 Future developments

1.10.1 Future developments will include customer satisfaction surveys within the Community 
Safety and Enforcement Team. The result of these will play an important role in helping to 
develop the service that we offer to our customers. 

1.10.2 The literature and information that the council provides for residents about anti-social 
behaviour and enforcement types is being reviewed and refreshed.  These will  prove 
useful when communicating with residents and addressing their concerns.  Additional 
updates to the website will also be made.

2       OPTIONS

2.1 Do nothing

2.2 Note the contents of the report and provide members with a further update report in six 
months’ time. 

3       REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)

3.1 It is recommended that the contents of this report are noted and that members of the 
Performance Monitoring Panel have an up to date underrating of the enforcement that is 
taking place across the district.

4 EXPECTED BENEFITS

Page 63



4.1.1 The report will give the overview of the Council’s enforcement activities.

4.1.2 It will give assurances that enforcement action is being taken appropriately and that the 
resident and community concerns are being addressed.

5 IMPLICATIONS

In preparing this report, the report author has considered the likely implications of the 
decision - particularly in terms of Carbon Footprint / Environmental Issues; 
Constitutional & Legal; Contracts; Corporate Priorities; Crime & Disorder; Equality & 
Diversity/Human Rights; Financial; Health & Wellbeing; Reputation; Risk Management; 
Safeguarding; Staffing; Stakeholders/Consultation/Timescales; Transformation 
Programme; Other. Where the report author considers that there may be implications under 
one or more of these headings, these are identified below.

5.1 Constitutional & Legal

5.1.1 There are many pieces of legislation that span across Planning, Building Control, Housing, 
Environmental, Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and Disorder and Public Protection functions. 
The most appropriate tool or power will be used for each case to resolve the issue.

5.2 Corporate Priorities

5.2.1    The service covered in this report supports three of the Council’s Corporate Priorities;
- To develop safer, stronger, healthier and more independent communities while
protecting the most vulnerable
- To have pride in South Holland by supporting the district and residents to develop and
Thrive
- To provide the right services, at the right time and in the right way

5.3 Crime and Disorder

5.3.1 There are no direct implications from this report. However, taking appropriate enforcement
action is a key part of community safety and addressing crime and disorder concerns.

5.4 Equality and Diversity / Human Rights

5.4.1 There are no direct implications from this report. It should be noted that surveillance
techniques and investigations need to consider Article 8 of the Human Rights Act which
covers right to privacy.

5.5 Financial

5.5.1 There are no direct implications from this report. However, some enforcement action can
result in financial penalties alongside proportionate legal costs.

5.6 Reputation

5.6.1 It is important that the council demonstrates its commitment to taking appropriate and
proportionate enforcement action and that it effectively deals with local concerns.

5.7 Risk Management

Page 64



5.7.1 Enforcement action, particularly when it reaches court proceedings, is open to challenge.
It is important that there is robust evidence to take enforcement action beyond an initial
warning stage. There needs to be confidence in a case if it leads to court. Any case with
insufficient evidence, which fails at court, has significant cost implications for local
authorities and officers have a duty to use public money appropriately. Enforcement
action should be in the best interest of the public and be proportional, consistent,
transparent and targeted.

6.0 WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED

6.1 Services are provided for all those living, working or visiting the district.

7.0 ACRONYMS
7.1 None.

Background papers:-

Lead Contact Officer
Name and Post: Dee Bedford Community Safety & Enforcement Manager
Telephone Number 01775 764457
Email: dee.bedford@sholland.gov.uk

Key Decision: N 

Exempt Decision: N 

Page 65



This page is intentionally left blank



SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL

Report of: Monitoring Officer – Maxine O’Mahony   

To: Performance Monitoring Panel – 30 January 2019
Council – 27 February 2019  

(Author: Jacqui Berridge Lawyer)

Subject Constitution

Purpose: To consider variations to the Constitution 

Recommendation(s): 

1) Call-in for Non-Key Officer Decisions - That Call-in not apply to non-Key Decisions made 
by officers under delegated authority, and the Constitution be amended in accordance with 
Appendix A; 

2) Senior Information Risk Officer (SIRO) - That the Shared Executive Manager Information 
be appointed the Senior Information Risk Officer, and the Constitution be amended in 
accordance with Appendix B

3)  Licensing functions 

 That the terms of reference of the Licensing Committee be amended to include reference 
to the Animal Welfare functions, and to clarify the licensing functions for which it is 
responsible as shown in Appendix C

 That the terms of reference of the Licensing Panel be amended to refer specifically to 
Regulation 2 of the Local Authorities (Functions and Responsibilities (England) 
Regulations 2000 as shown in Appendix C

 That the Monitoring Officer be authorised to amend the Constitution to include reference 
to any future additional licensing matters which come under the above terms of 
reference, subject to a report being submitted to full Council for information. 

4) Staffing Procedures / Appeals Panel and Grievance Panel

 That paragraph 12 of the table at paragraph 15(l) of part 3 Section F be amended to that 
shown in Appendix D

 That existing paragraphs 13 to 17 be deleted and the remaining section of Part 3 Section 
F be renumbered accordingly 

 That the Appeals Panel and the Grievance Panel be replaced with one Appeals Panel 
comprising 4 members (excluding any members involved in the original decision which is 
subject to appeal), not appointed in accordance with the Local Government (Committees 
and Political Groups) Regulations 1990, with a Quorum of 3 members in accordance with 
standing order no. 38, and with the single term of reference detailed at Appendix D

 The duplicate delegations in the Schedule of Delegation be deleted 

Page 67

Agenda Item 13



1.0 BACKGROUND

1.1 The Council’s current Constitution was approved by full Council at its meeting on 21 
January 2016.  Under Article 14 of the Constitution (as amended) any proposed changes 
may be approved only by full Council unless the change is:

 a minor variation; or
 required to be made to remove any inconsistency or ambiguity; or
 required to be made so as to put into effect any decision of the Council or its 

committees or the Cabinet

1.2 In such circumstances the variation may be made by the Monitoring Officer and comes into 
force with immediate effect, but must (unless a minor typographical, referencing or 
numbering change) be referred to full Council as soon as is reasonably possible.  Any 
change only continues to have effect if full Council agree. Minor typographical, referencing 
and numbering changes shall not require the approval of full Council. 

1.3 All other variations must be submitted to full Council for approval.

1.4 This report seeks full Council approval for a number of non-minor variations. 

2.0       PROPOSED VARIATIONS BEING SUBMITTED TO COUNCIL FOR APPROVAL 

(a) Call-in for Non-Key Officer Decisions 

2.1 The Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to Information) 
(England) Regulations 2012 have been in force since 10 September 2012.  Amongst other 
things, the Regulations require all executive decisions taken by officers under delegated 
powers to be published.  Prior to these Regulations only officer decisions which were key 
decisions had to be published.

2.2 The Constitution then requires all published executive decisions to be subject to call-in.  By 
default, then, all officer decisions (other than very minor/administrative decisions) are 
subject to call-in.  A large number of officer decisions are now subject to call-in but this is 
by default rather than by design. Under section 9Fof the Local Government Act 2000 the 
Council is required to ensure that its overview and scrutiny Committee has power to review 
or scrutinise executive decisions, including the power to review or scrutinise decisions 
made but not implemented (call-in), but it is for each Council to decide which decisions are 
subject to call-in.   

2.3 As the current Constitution requires all published officer executive decisions to be subject 
to call-in this can reduce the speed of decision-making, and potentially divert attention 
away from those officer decisions that are likely to be of greatest interest to the 
Performance Monitoring Panel. The requirement was not part of the previous Constitution 
and is not required by law.  It is suggested that, where an officer is authorised to make a 
decision under delegated powers, that decision should not be subject to call-in unless the 
decision is a key decision, and proposed amendments are shown in Appendix A to this 
report. A Key Decision is a decision that either (i) is above a defined financial value 
(currently £75,000 revenue or £180,000 capital); or (ii) has a significant effect on 
communities in two or more wards of the council.

2.4 If approved, non-key decisions will continue to be published in order to ensure openness 
and transparency and to enable members and the public to scrutinise decisions taken.  
Rather than publishing individual decisions, it is proposed that non-key decisions are 

Page 68



published in weekly lists – which will continue to show matters including rationale/reasons 
for the decisions, background to the decisions and alternative options considered.  The 
Performance Monitoring Panel may wish to consider these weekly decision lists regularly at 
scheduled meetings in order to hold decision-makers to account.

(b)  Senior Information Risk Officer (SIRO)  

2.5 The Senior Information Risk Officer (also variously known as the Serious Information Risk 
Officer and the Senior Information Risk Owner) takes overall ownership of the Council’s 
information management framework, including its information risk policy.  The SIRO is 
responsible for managing information risks.

 2.6 The SIRO should:

 be an Executive Director, or a member of the senior management team
 be familiar with information risks 
 provide the focus for the management of information risk at senior management 

level 
 provide assurance that information risk is being managed appropriately and 

effectively across the organisation and for any services contracted by the 
organisation.

2.7 The Executive Manager - Governance is currently the Data Protection Officer (DPO), and 
the Senior Reporting Officer for the purposes of managing information risks generally, and 
for monitoring authorisations granted under the Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 
2000.  However, best practice is now to ensure that the responsibilities of the SIRO and 
DPO are separated. It is recommended that the SIRO role be allocated to the Shared 
Executive Manager Information, and that the Constitution be amended as shown in 
Appendix B to take this into account.  

(c) Licensing functions 

2.8 The Licensing Committee is currently responsible for all Policy related decisions for 
Hackney Carriage & Private Hire Vehicles, Operators and Drivers, Sex Establishments, 
Hypnotism, Street Trading, functions relating to health and safety at work and “any other 
Licensing provisions that the authority is required to undertake not mentioned elsewhere in 
this Constitution”.  

2.9 The Licensing Panel is then authorised to deal with applications for licences for Hackney 
Carriages and Private Hire Vehicles, in so far as these are not delegated to officers, “and 
all other licences/permits/registrations etc detailed at Part B of Schedule 1 of the 2000 
Regulations in so far as these are not delegated to officers and are not the responsibility of 
the Committee of the Licensing Authority”.

2.10 The “2000 Regulations” means the Local Authorities (Functions and Responsibilities 
(England) Regulations 2000.  By virtue of Regulation 2 and Schedule 2 of these 
Regulations most licensing functions of the Council, including (Regulation 2) the imposition 
of conditions/limitations, enforcement, amendment, modification, variation or revocation of 
licenses etc and the determination of any charges and fees, are functions which cannot be 
undertaken by the executive.  However, this may not always be the case.  

2.11 The Animal Welfare (Licensing of Activities Involving Animals) Regulations 2018 came into 
effect on 1 October 2018.  In accordance with the 2000 Regulations all of the functions of 
those Regulations cannot be the responsibility of the executive, and a report proposing 

Page 69



delegations to officers and fees and charges was submitted to the Licensing Panel for 
consideration.  

2.12 Arising from this it is recommended that;

 the terms of reference of the Licensing Committee be amended to include reference 
to the Animal Welfare functions, and to clarify the licensing functions for which it is 
responsible as shown in Appendix C

 the terms of reference of the Licensing Panel be amended to refer specifically to 
Regulation 2 of the Local Authorities (Functions and Responsibilities) (England) 
Regulations 2000 as shown in Appendix C

 the Monitoring officer be authorised to amend the Constitution to include reference 
to any future additional licensing matters which come under the above terms of 
reference, subject to a report being submitted to full Council for information.  

(d) Staffing Procedures / Appeals Panel and Grievance Panel 

2.13 The Council currently has an Appeals Panel comprising 4 members.  The single term of 
reference of the Appeals Panel is to deal with “appeals in respect of grading and 
grievances by employees of the Council, but not appeals under the Job Evaluation scheme 
where an alternative appeals procedure exists”.

2.14 The Council also has a Grievance Panel comprising 4 members.  The single term of 
reference of the Grievance Panel is “to hear staff grievances when the usual procedure is 
inappropriate, as judged by the Monitoring Officer or the Section 151 Officer, and where 
this has not been possible to resolve the matter by mediation.”

2.15 At the same time, some officers have delegated authority to deal with all staffing matters 
such as discipline, capability under both the Schedule of Delegation and the Constitution.  

2.16 It is proposed that this is now clarified by including full details of officer staffing delegations 
in the Constitution, deleting duplicate delegations from the Schedule of Delegations, and 
clarifying the role of members in appeals. 

2.17 To secure this, it is recommended that: 

 paragraph 12 of the table at paragraph 15(l) of part 3 Section F be amended to that 
shown in Appendix D

 existing paragraphs 13 to 17 be deleted and the remaining section of Part 3 Section 
F be renumbered accordingly 

 the Appeals Panel and the Grievance Panel be replaced with one Appeals Panel 
comprising 4 members (excluding any members involved in the original decision 
which is subject to appeal), not appointed in accordance with the Local Government 
(Committees and Political Groups) Regulations 1990, with a Quorum of 3 members 
in accordance with standing order no. 38, and with the single term of reference 
detailed at Appendix D

 duplicate delegations in the Schedule of Delegation be deleted. 

3.0 OPTIONS

3.1 Members have the option to approve or not approve the variations, or to require alternative 
variations.  

Page 70



4.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)

4.1 To remove anomalies, improve efficiency and effectiveness, and to ensure that the 
Constitution is kept up to date with changing circumstances. 

5.0 EXPECTED BENEFITS

5.1 To ensure business continuity; secure necessary minor typographical, referencing and 
numbering variations to the Constitution; reduce bureaucracy and the administrative 
burden; and ensure clarify of function.  

6.0 IMPLICATIONS

In preparing this report, the report author has considered the likely implications of the 
decision - particularly in terms of Carbon Footprint / Environmental Issues; 
Constitutional & Legal; Contracts; Corporate Priorities; Crime & Disorder; Equality & 
Diversity/Human Rights; Financial; Health & Wellbeing; Reputation; Risk Management; 
Safeguarding; Staffing; Stakeholders/Consultation/Timescales; Transformation 
Programme; Other. Where the report author considers that there may be implications under 
one or more of these headings, these are identified below.

6.1 Constitutional & Legal

6.1.1 Any legal implications are set out in the relevant paragraphs.  Amending the Constitution is 
a function reserved to full Council. 

7.0 WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED

7.1 None 

8.0 ACRONYMS

8.1 SIRO means Senior Information Risk Officer.

8.2 DPO means Data Protection Officer. 

Background papers:- The Council’s Constitution which is available on the Council’s 
website. 

Lead Contact Officer
Name and Post: Jacqui Berridge Lawyer
Telephone Number
Email: jacqui.berridge@breckland-sholland.gov.uk

Key Decision: N 

Exempt Decision: N

This report refers to a Mandatory Service 

Page 71



Appendices attached to this report: 
Appendix A Proposed amendments if deletion of call-in to non-key officer 

decisions is approved
Appendix B Proposed amendments to allocate the post of Senior Information 

Risk Officer
Appendix C Proposed amendments to the terms of reference of the Licensing 

Committee and the Licensing Panel
Appendix D (a) Proposed amendments to sub-paragraph 12 of paragraph 15(l) of 

Section F of Part 3 of the Constitution (delegation to officers) and (b) 
proposed term of reference of the proposed Appeals Panel

Page 72



Appendix A – proposed amendments if deletion of call-in to non-key officer decisions is approved 

Part 3 - Section D – Delegation to Committees  - Section D1 – General provisions relating to 
Executive Powers 

Paragraph 7 be amended to read as follows:

“7.  All Executive Decisions, other than urgent decisions (as set out in the Access to Information 
Procedure Rules) and non-Key Decisions made by officers, are subject to the Call-In procedure 
set out later in Part 3.”

Function of Performance Monitoring Panel – the paragraph describing the Call-in Procedure for 
Executive Decisions be amended as follows:

“! 1. No Executive action shall be taken to implement a decision by the Leader, a Cabinet Member 
or by the Cabinet, a Sub-Committee of the Cabinet or an a Key Decision by an officer for a 
period of five clear Working Days from the date of publication of the decision to members, and if 
any reference is made within this time under the following paragraph, Executive action shall be 
further delayed pending consideration by the Performance Monitoring Panel. However, Executive 
action can proceed at once if the action is urgent and the procedures set out in the Access to 
Information Procedure Rules are followed.”

Section F1 – Officer Delegations 

Paragraph 11.0 be amended to read as follows:

11.0 Where a decision to be made by any Officer under delegated authority meets the definition of 
an Executive Decision including a Key Decision, that Officer shall be obliged to publish the 
decision.  Where that Executive Decision is also a Key Decision that Officer shall be obliged 
to comply with all relevant rules in this Constitution relating to Key Decisions (with particular regard 
to publishing Key Decisions in advance, publishing decision notices and complying with Call-In).

Page 73



Appendix B – Proposed amendments to allocate the post of Senior Information Risk Officer 

Part 3 Section F3 (Delegation to Executive Directors) 

Paragraph 6 be amended to read as follows: 

“6.0 Information

6.1 The Senior Legal Officer is authorised to make all determinations on exemptions and
fees under the Freedom of Information Act 2000.

6.2 The Senior Legal Officer is the Senior Reporting Officer (SRO) for the purposes of
managing information risks generally and for monitoring authorisations granted under
the Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000.

6.3 The Shared Executive Manager Information is the Senior Information Risk Officer (SIRO) 
for the purposes of taking overall ownership of the Council’s information management 
framework, including its information risk policy “

Page 74



APPENDIX C – proposed amendments to the terms of reference of the Licensing Committee and 
the Licensing Panel 

The terms of reference of the Licensing Committee be amended to read as follows:

“1. To deal with all Policy related decisions relating to:

(a) Hackney Carriage & Private Hire Vehicles, Operators and Drivers

(b) Sex Establishments

(c) Hypnotism

(d) Street Trading

(e) Functions relating to health and safety at work … (etc)  

(f) Animal Welfare 

(g) Any other Licensing provisions that the authority is required to undertake not mentioned 
elsewhere in this Constitution including all functions detailed at part B of Schedule 1 of the 
2000 Regulations and where those functions either cannot be, or may be (but need not be), 
the responsibility of an authority’s executive. “

The terms of the Licensing Panel be amended to read as follows: 

“1. To deal with applications for licences for Hackney Carriages and Private Hire Vehicles, in so far 
as these are not delegated to officers, and all other licences/permits/registrations etc and 
functions detailed at Regulation 2 and Part B of Schedule 1 of the 2000 Regulations in so far as 
these are not delegated to officers and are not the responsibility of the Committee of the Licensing 
Authority.

2. To deal with applications for performances of Hypnotism, Drinking in Public Places Byelaws: 
Permits

3. To deal with objections to applications for permits for the use of the highway for the provision of 
facilities for refreshments under Section 115(E) of the Highways Act 1980.

4. Street Trading

5. To consider and determine applications for licences recommended for refusal, or 
recommendations for revocation of a licence.” 

Page 75



APPENDIX D  (a) Proposed amendments to sub-paragraph 12 of paragraph 15(l) of Section F of 
Part 3 of the Constitution (delegation to officers) and (b) proposed term of reference of the 
proposed Appeals Panel 

(a) Proposed amendments to sub-paragraph 12 of paragraph 15(l) of Section F of Part 3 of the 
Constitution (staffing functions delegated to Chief Officers) 

12.

POWER ALLOCATED 

Except for matters reserved to the Joint Appointments 
and Disciplinary Committee and the Joint Appointments 
and Disciplinary Appeals Committee and matters dealt 
with under Standing Orders relating to Staff:

 recruitment of staff (whether permanent, 
temporary or probationary and in whatever 
manner) 

 appointment of staff including grading (whether 
permanent, temporary or probationary and in 
whatever manner) 

 disciplinary action, including dismissal, and 
termination of temporary, permanent or 
probationary employment for any reason 
(including but not limited to capability relating to 
skill, aptitude, ill health or any other physical or 
mental quality, efficiency of the service, 
redundancy or retirement) (EXCEPT termination 
of employment under a settlement agreement 
subject to a settlement figure of £30,000 or above 
which shall be dealt with by full Council) including 
appeals in relation to any of those actions  

 grievance including determination of appeals 

This delegation does not include amending the 
establishment which function remains with full Council. 

EXERCISABLE BY 

The relevant Chief Officer in 
consultation with the Chief 
Executive and (in cases of 
disciplinary action, dismissal 
and termination of 
employment) in consultation 
with the Monitoring Officer and 
the Section 151 Officer subject 
to compliance with the 
Council’s approved staffing 
policies UNLESS 

the Monitoring Officer or the 
Section 151 Officer considers it 
inappropriate for the matter to 
be dealt with under this 
delegation in which case the 
matter be delegated to the 
Chief Executive in consultation 
with the portfolio holder; OR

(in relation to appeals) the 
matter shall be dealt with by 
the Appeals Panel 

(b) Proposed single term of reference of proposed Appeals Panel 

“(Excluding (a) matters reserved to the Joint Appointments and Disciplinary Committee and the 
Joint Appointments and Disciplinary Appeals Committee and matters dealt with under Standing 
Orders relating to Staff and (b) appeals under the Job Evaluation scheme where an alternative 
appeals procedure exists).   To consider and determine any appeals by employees on staffing 
matters (including but not limited to grading, disciplinary action, dismissal, termination of 
employment for any reason, redundancy, retirement and grievance) where the Monitoring Officer 
or Section 151 Officer considers it inappropriate for the matter to be dealt with under officer 
delegations.” 

Page 76



SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL

Report of: Executive Manager - Governance (Deputy Monitoring Officer)

To: Performance Monitoring Panel – 30 January 2019

Author: Christine Morgan – Democratic Services Officer

Subject: Performance Monitoring Panel Work Programme

Purpose: To set out the Work Programme of the Performance Monitoring Panel

Recommendation:

That the Panel gives consideration to the report and identifies any issues for discussion; 

1.0 BACKGROUND

1.1 This report records the issues for consideration that have been identified by the Panel for 
inclusion on its Work Programme.

1.2 Issues

1.2.1 Appendix A sets out the dates of future Panel meetings along with proposed items for 
consideration.  These items were either originally suggested by councillors or are being 
referred to the Panel from officers or the Cabinet.  This appendix will be updated as new 
items are identified.

1.2.2 Appendix B sets out the task groups that have been identified by the Panel.  The table 
shows:

 The name of the task group
 What it wants to achieve
 Key dates
 Membership of the task group
 When the task group will be reporting back to the Panel

1.2.3 It is hoped that in presenting the information in this way, and by having the report as a 
standing item on the agenda, it will record the issues identified by the Panel and provide the 
opportunity for councillors to monitor the progress of its Work Programme.

2.0 OPTIONS

2.1 To note and consider the current status of the Work Programme.

2.2 To do nothing.

3.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION

3.1 To allow councillors to feed into the Panel’s calendar of Work Programme items and the 
Work Programme on a regular basis, to ensure that they stay relevant and up to date.

Page 77

Agenda Item 15



4.0 EXPECTED BENEFITS

4.1 The calendar of Work Programme items and the Work Programme will provide councillors 
with up to date and relevant information.  Timelines for various calendar items and 
proposed task groups within the Work Programme are included within the appendices.

5.0 IMPLICATIONS

In preparing this report, the report author has considered the likely implications of 
the decision - particularly in terms of Carbon Footprint / Environmental Issues; 
Constitutional & Legal; Contracts; Corporate Priorities; Crime & Disorder; Equality & 
Diversity/Human Rights; Financial; Health & Wellbeing; Reputation; Risk Management; 
Safeguarding; Staffing; Stakeholders/Consultation/Timescales; Transformation 
Programme; Other. Where the report author considers that there may be implications under 
one or more of these headings, these are identified below.

5.1 Corporate Priorities

5.1.1 In identifying issues for inclusion on the Work Programme, councillors consider the 
suitability of the subject, taking into account such considerations as whether the issue is 
strategic and significant and whether it is likely to lead to effective outcomes.  One of the 
indicators against which each potential task group is scored identifies how strongly the topic 
links to the Council’s key aims and priorities. 

6.0 WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED

6.1 This report has no implications however, as individual items are progressed through the 
Work Programme, their impact on wards and communities will be assessed.

7.0 ACRONYMS 

7.1 None.

Background papers:- None

Lead Contact Officer

Name and Post: Christine Morgan
Telephone Number: 01775 764454
Email: cmorgan@sholland.gov.uk

Key Decision: No

Exempt Decision: No

This report refers to a Mandatory Service 

Appendices attached to this report: 

Appendix A Work Programme Calendar
Appendix B Task Group Work Programme 2018/19

Page 78



 APPENDIX A

PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL – CALENDAR OF WORK PROGRAMME 
ITEMS

Date of Meeting Agenda items

30 January 
2019

 Performance Overview Report Q3 – 2018-19.
 Emergency Planning – To provide an update to the Panel on 

the Terms of Reference with the Lincolnshire Resilience 
Forum.

 Enforcement – update report on how the Authority is 
addressing the various types of enforcement, following the 
Authority-wide reorganisation. (last update 6/2/18 and 
31/7/18))

 Public Toilets Task Group – Final Report.
 Health Inequality –  The Director of Public Health to provide a 

presentation
 Constitution – To consider variations to the Constitution
 Economic Development – further update report

20 March 2019  Re-letting of Void Properties Task Group – Update report on 
progress in actioning recommendations of the Task Group (6-
monthly update).

 Opportunity Peterborough – Update on work undertaken, and 
progress (to include feedback from Fenland and South 
Kesteven councils).

Meeting in May 
2019 – to be 
allocated when 
Schedule of 
Meetings 
finalised

 Crime and Disorder – Update report on community safety and 
how it is being delivered through the various tiers of Groups 
and Panels (including the East Lincs CSP and newly formed 
Lincolnshire CSP) – Update to be provided every six months 
by the Portfolio Holder for Community Development. Last 
discussed at 13/11/18 meeting where it was requested that the 
next update provide the following – 1) Youth Restorative 
Option – more information on the initiative and its output; and 
2) More information on mental health – how this was being 
monitored in relation to its links to crime, and help provided to 
those affected by mental health.

 Swimming Pool and Leisure Facilities Contract Task Group – 
update on progress of recommendations (last update received 
13 November 2018 – update to address issues raised at this 
meeting)

 Information report on future commercialisation projects (6 
monthly update – last update on 13 November 2018)

Future meetings 
2018/19 
municipal year, 
and items yet to 
be allocated.

 Commercialisation (2) – how effectively is the Authority 
managing commercial opportunities?  Second report, a 
general report around commercialisation.

 Cost of running the South Holland Centre 
 What areas of risk exist within Public Services for cost 

shunting, and how can this be avoided? 

Page 79



For consideration later in the year

 Note: Following consideration of the Key Decision Plan, PMP and PDP have 
requested that a special Joint Meeting will be held to discuss the setting up 
of the South Holland Building Consultancy prior to it being considered by 
Cabinet (date to be confirmed).

 Commercialisation – As potential projects arise, PMP to consider scrutiny

****************
To be considered annually:

The Sir Halley Stewart Playing Field Task Group presented its Final Report to 
Council on 21 January 2015.  Its first recommendation was:

That the Council (i) advises the Charity Commission that the Task Group has 
considered the Commission’s Guidance on public benefit and is satisfied that the 
Council is compliant; (ii) provides a copy of this report to the Commission in order to 
outline the actions proposed by the Council; and (iii) invites  the Performance 
Monitoring Panel to appoint a Task Group on an annual (single meeting) basis 
for the specific purpose of ensuring that the Council remains compliant with 
Charity Commission Guidance.

A meeting has been arranged and will take place on 24 January 2019.

Page 80



APPENDIX B

PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL – WORK PROGRAMME 2018/2019

Name of Task Group What the Task Group wants to achieve Date added 
to Work 
Programme

Date Work 
Commenced    

Membership 
of Task 
Group

Proposed date of 
report to Panel

Public Toilets Task Group To review public toilets in the district, looking at 
location, cleaning regimes, usage, reasons for 
closure and running costs.
To use information gathered to ensure value 
for money, good service, and that the right 
money was spent in the right place.

6 February 
2018

23 April 2018 J R Astill
CJTH Brewis
T A Carter
GK Dark 
(Chairman)
PC Foyster

30 January 2019

Swimming Pool and 
Leisure Centre Contract 
Task Group

To review the Spalding swimming pool and 
leisure centre, specifically:
 To consider performance, in relation to the 

contract, by the Authority and the 
contractor, particularly with reference to 
building maintenance and cleanliness, 
promotion of the facilities and reinvestment 
in the facilities;

 To look at the Council’s performance in 
monitoring the leisure facilities; and

 To learn from the outcomes of this scrutiny, 
to inform future contracts and contract 
monitoring.

1 December 
2015

21 January 
2016

J R Astill
T A Carter
G K Dark 
(Chairman)
J L King
A M Newton

30 August 2016

To Cabinet 8 
November 2016

Response and 
update on 
progress PMP 
4/2/17, 16/5/17, 
7/11/17 and 
2/5/18.
Next update 
13/11/18.

Performance of the re-
letting of voids Task 

To review the Council’s performance of re-
letting void properties and to make 

15 June 
2016

3 October 
2016

GR Aley 
(Chairman)

16 May 2017
To Cabinet 25 

P
age 81



Name of Task Group What the Task Group wants to achieve Date added 
to Work 
Programme

Date Work 
Commenced    

Membership 
of Task 
Group

Proposed date of 
report to Panel

Group recommendations to help improve MD Booth
CJTH Brewis
TA Carter

July 2017

Updates on 
progress - PMP 
7/11/17 and  
26/9/18.
Next update 
20/3/19.

Sir Halley Stewart Playing 
Field Task Group

Recommendation of the original Task Group to 
appoint a Task Group on an annual (single 
meeting) basis for the specific purpose of 
ensuring that the Council remained compliant 
with Charity Commission Guidance.

15 June 
2016

Date to be 
confirmed.

GR Aley
JR Astill
GK Dark
PC Foyster
AM Newton

Meeting taking 
place on 24 
January 2019.

Effectiveness of CCTV 
Task Group

Purpose of Review – To establish the current 
situation with regard to CCTV and make 
recommendations to Cabinet on the way 
forward.

Terms of Reference – To examine the 
effectiveness of the SHDC CCTV service and 
prospects for future provision.

Panel received update on 8 April 2014 from the 
Portfolio Holder for Localism and Big Society 

6 November 
2012 

21 November 
2012 

B Alcock
M Howard
R M Rudkin
D J Wilkinson 
(Chairman)

  
Membership 
to be 
considered 

Interim report to 
PMP 29 January 
2013 
Interim report to 
Cabinet 19 
February 2013.
Tracking of 
recommendations 
to PMP 26 March 
2013
Updates to PMP:

P
age 82



Name of Task Group What the Task Group wants to achieve Date added 
to Work 
Programme

Date Work 
Commenced    

Membership 
of Task 
Group

Proposed date of 
report to Panel

on the position regarding CCTV.  Performance 
information will be available on the new system 
in the future, once it becomes operational.  
The Task Group will remain in operation to 
scrutinise performance and will start to do 
this once the information becomes 
available.

following 
District 
Council 
Election 

8 April 2014, and 
six-monthly 
thereafter. 

Leisure Facilities Task 
Group

Joint Task Group 
incorporating members of 
the Performance 
Monitoring and Policy 
Development Panels. 

To make recommendations, regarding the 
present and future leisure     provision in South 
Holland.

1. By establishing what leisure provision the 
District Council presently provides, 
examining costs, resident satisfaction and 
competitiveness in order to identify ways of 
increasing income or reducing expenditure;

2. To understand what the District Council 
wishes to provide and what the public and 
major employers need; 

3. To examine the options for future provision 
either to be supplied by the Council, the 
private sector or shared management.

Agreed at PMP 25 November 2014 – A date 
for completion of the Business Plan looking at 

30 May 
2012

21 January 
2014

G R Aley 
(Chairman)
D Ashby
A Casson
G K Dark
R Perkins
S Slade
E Sneath
S Wilkinson

Lead Officer: 
Phil Adams

Membership 
to be 
considered 
following 

Interim report 
presented to joint 
PMP/PDP – 19 
August 2014 
To Cabinet 7 
October 2014
Tracking of 
recommendations 
to PMP 25 
November 2014
Update on leisure 
options to PMP 3 
March 2015 (PDP 
members to 
attend PMP 
meeting)

P
age 83



Name of Task Group What the Task Group wants to achieve Date added 
to Work 
Programme

Date Work 
Commenced    

Membership 
of Task 
Group

Proposed date of 
report to Panel

Leisure Services provision, being drawn 
together by the Community Development and 
Health Manager, be confirmed by the Assistant 
Director Community, and that a joint meeting of 
the Performance Monitoring Panel and Policy 
Development Panel, for consideration of the 
document, be arranged.

Following consideration of the update to PMP 
on 3 March 2015 (PDP members were invited 
to attend), it was agreed that leisure provision 
must be a priority for the Council, and must be 
considered as a priority by the next 
administration following the District Council 
election.

District 
Council 
Election

The effectiveness of 
management companies 
set up to undertake 
maintenance on 
residential estates 
throughout the district 
past, present and for the 
future.

Scope to be confirmed. 25 
November 
2014

To be 
confirmed

To be 
confirmed

To be confirmed

P
age 84


	Agenda
	4a) Performance Monitoring Panel
	4b) Joint meeting of the Performance Monitoring Panel and Policy Development Panel
	8 Key Decision Plan
	9 Quarter 3 2018-19 Performance Overview Report
	Appendix 1 for Quarter 3 2018-19 Performance Overview Report

	10 Enforcement Update
	13 Constitution
	15 Performance Monitoring Panel Work Programme
	Appendix A
	Appendix B


